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Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

Bureau of Rail & Transit

May 30, 2025

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT) to pay an amount not to exceed
$80,000 to Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (Vendor 177195), Berlin, NH, project # 68057C,
to upgrade dispatching software, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2029.
100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agreement is available in the Fiscal Year 2026 budget.

04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal

FY 2026

$80,000

EXPLANATION

NHDOT has approved a request from Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (TCCAP) for Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) §5339 Bus & Bus Facilities Program funding to upgrade TCCAP's
dispatching software. The funding is for ITS Equipment Base Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) software
to automate the passenger eligibility, trip reservations, scheduling, brokering, dispatching, routing,
billing, data tracking, and reporting functions of demand-response transportation services, thus enhancing
TCCAP's ability to provide transportation services.

TCCAP is a private, non-profit organization providing rural public transportation, including
transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in Coos and Grafton Counties as North
Country Transit (NCT) and in Carroll County as Carroll County Transit (CCT).

NHDOT released a public notice on December 4, 2024, announcing the availability of funding from
the FTA §5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program. NHDOT solicited proposals from public transit agencies
and private non-profit organizations engaged in public transportation services. Eight (8) transit agencies
applied by the January 22, 2025, deadline, and all eight transit agencies were awarded funds for eligible
projects. A table summarizing the request and their award status is provided further below.

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING • 7 HAZEN DRIVE • P.O. BOX 483 • CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE: ̂031 271-3734 > FAX: (603) 271-3914 • TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 * DOT.NH.GOV



A project evaluation committee consisting of three Department staff from the NHDOT Bureau of Rail
and Transit reviewed and scored the §5339 applications submitted for projects. The evaluation committee
members included the Public Transportation Administrator, Fred Butler, Transportation Specialist, Mike
Pouliot, and Transit Grants Coordinator, Paula Devens. Each reviewer evaluated and scored applications
based on the criteria indicated in the application materials. Projects meeting NHDOT's criteria for
inclusion in its public transit funding plan will be awarded in separate amounts for the aforementioned
transit systems.

The evaluation matrix and scores are provided below for reference:

1

The applicant conveys how this addresses state priorities identified in Statewide
Strategic Transit Assessment's policy priority recommendations (as listed in
Appendix A: NHDOT Policy*). Applicants need to adequately illustrate how the
project will benefit the agency's transportation program/services, including how
it is necessary for continued and/or improved operations.

30%

2
The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate
service and conduct ongoing maintenance associated with this capital request.

20%

3

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness,
measured in ridership, service miles and hours, and costs. New applicants must
demonstrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

20%

4

The applicant complies with relevant Federal and state regulations and has a
history of compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. New
applicants must demonstrate sufficient resources for compliance.

15%

5

The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial
and otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government, e.g., letters of
support, willing to provide local match above minimum required, etc.

15%

Totals •  100%

Transit System Scbf^ . Status Award/Contracting Action

University of New Hampshire

(3) 12-14 CNG Cutaway Buses 100% Awarded Transferred for direct

administration with FTA

University of New Hampshire

(2) Accessible Minivans 100% Not Awarded * To be funded via FTA §5307
instead of this program

VNA HCS

(2) 12x2 Gasoline Cutaway Buses 100% Awarded ' Statewide Purchase & Property
Contract

Community Action Program Belknap-iMerrimack Counties, Inc.

(1) 12x2 gas cutaway 100% Awarded Statewide Purchase & Property
Contract

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc.

(1) 16x2 gas cutaway 100% Awarded Statewide Purchase & Property
Contract

Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation

(2) 31x2 diesel 35+foot transit

buses

100% Awarded Transferred/split for direct
administration with FTA

Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation

(1) 10x2 gas cutaway 100% Awarded Transferred/split for direct
administration with FTA

Nashua Transit System

(2) CNG, 16 X 2 cutaway buses 100% Awarded Transferred/split for direct
administration with FTA



Nashua Transit System

(1)12x2 gas or EV cutaway bus 100% Awarded Transferred/split for direct
administration with FTA

Southwestern Community Services

(2) 12x2 cutaway buses 100% Awarded Statewide Purchase & Property
Contract

Advance Transit

(1) 10x2 gas Ford Transit 350 100% Awarded GifeC #18 Approved 5/21/2025

Advance Transit

(2) 26 diesel <30-foot transit
buses

100% Awarded G&C #18 Approved 5/21/2025

Advance Transit

(1) Maintenance Lift 95% Awarded G&C # 18 Approved 5/2112025

Advance Transit

(!) Kilton Transit Hub shelter 92% Awarded G&C #18 Approved 5/21/2025

Advance Transit

FMLive (fuel master) fueling
system upgrade

92% Awarded G&C # 18 Approved 5/21 /2025

Tri-County Community Action Program

Dispatching software -
Statewide

88% Awarded G&C Agreement (pending)

Advance Transit

Shop, parts room and garage floor
repair

87% Awarded G&C # 18 Approved 5/21 /2025

Tri-County Community Action Program

New windows and exterior door 73% Awarded Project eligible under FTA
531 1 and funded from prior
year's approyed G&C award

Advance Transit

(1) Kilton Transit Hub Interactive
Transit Sign Exp.

69% Not Awarded * Project not approved

Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation

(2) Bus Shelters with benches and
solar lights

0% Not Awarded * Project withdrawn by COAST

The subject TCCAP project funding is as follows:

SPY 2025

FTA §5339
Solicitations

Total

Project

Costs

Federal

FTA §5339
FTA %

State

Capital
Match (General Funds)

Local

Match

(1) ITS Equipment
Computer-Aided
Dispatch software $100,000 $80,000 80% $0 $20,000

Total Funding $100,000 $80,000 $0 $20,000

Total Grant Funds $80,000

The total project cost is $100,000, which includes $80,000 (80%) FTA and $20,000 (20%) Local agency
match. This agreement reflects only the Federal portion of the project for a maximum agreement amount
of $80,000.



TCCAP will procure the equipment following Federal procurement guidelines.

In the event that Federal Funds are unavailable, additional General Funds will not be requested to support
this program.

This agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution. The NHDOT has
verified that the necessary funds are available. Copies of the fully executed agreement are on file at the
Secretary of State's Office and the Department of Administrative Services Office, and subsequent to
Governor and Council approval will be on file at NHDOT.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.

Commissioner

Attachments



FORM NUMBER G-1 (version 11/2021)

Subject: SFY 2025 FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities Program

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1. State Agency Name

NH Department of Transportation

! 1.2. State Agency Address

PO Box 483, 7 Hazen Dr. Concord, NH 03302-0483

1.3. Grantee Name

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.

1.4. Grantee Address

30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570-1911

1.5 Grantee Phone #

603-752-7001

1.6. Account Number

04-96-96-964010-2916-072-5

00575

1.7. Completion Date

June 30, 2029

1.8. Grant Limitation

$80,000

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Fred Butler, Public Transportation Administrator, Bureau
of Rail & Transit

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-2565

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signi
anv Dublic nieetine reauirenieht fof acceptance of tb

Qg this form we cerHfy that we have complied with
s grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95^."

1.11. Grantes^SiffliatuK 1 j\ 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signer 1

Grantee Si^ture Name & Title of Gxantee'Signor 2 N/A

Grantee Signature 3 N/A Name & Title of Grantee Signer 3 N/A

1.13 State Agency Signature(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

Michelle Winters, Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit

1(1'^. Approval by Attomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: Assifitajit-AttcmeyGcHeftrfrOn:

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: . ..

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State")i the Grantee identified in
block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly
described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to
as "the Project").
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3.

4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

12.

8.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

4.

9.J.

AREA COVERED. Excepc m otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Gnifltee shall perform the Pro)ect in, and with respect to, the Slate of New
Hampshire.
EPFECTIVK DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all oblig^ons of the parties bereundcr, shall become
eSective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and CoiuKil of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upon
signature by the Stale Agency us shown in block 1.14 ("the Effective Date").
Except as odteiwisc specific^ly provided berein, the Prefect, including all reports
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (bereioafter refen^ to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:

The Grant Ainount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C,
attached hereto.

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C.
In accordance with the-provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C. and in consideration
of the satisfactory perfoimancc of the Project, as detennined by the State, and as
limited by ̂ bparagr^b 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Gtwt Amount The State shall withhold from the omouhl otherwise
payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums requir^, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State ofthe Grant amoiml shall be the only, and the complete
payment to die Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by die
Grantee in tbe performance hereof aitd shall be the only, and the complete,
compensstioo to tbe Grantee for the Project The State shall have no liabilities to
the Grantee other than tbe Giaot Amount.

Notwithstanding anything in (his Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall die Mtal of all payments authorized,
or actually made, heieuhder exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
these general provisions.
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND RBCULATIONS. In

coanectioa with the perfonnaoce of (he Project, tbe Grantee shall comply with ail
statutes, lawa rcgulatioiis, and orders of federal:-state, county, or municipa]
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Granteb, including
the acquisition of any and all necessary permits and RSA3i-93-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and tbe date seven (7) years after tbe Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by die gram terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keq) detailed accounts of aJl expenses incurred in connection with the
Project, iocluding, but not limited to, costs of administration, tran^wrtation,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical maleriab and services. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, hills and other similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the date s^en (7) years aftef the Completion
Date, cnl^ othowise required by the grant terms or the Agency ̂ rsuant to
subparagraph 7.1, at any time during die Grantee's normal business hours, and as
often as the Slate shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. .Thq Grantee shall
permit die State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits
of all contracts, invoices, materiaU, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that
term is hertinafter defin^, and other information relating to all matters covered
by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL

The Grantee^all, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary lu perform
the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perfbim such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project under all qrplicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, subgrantee,
or other prerson, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship witb
(he State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In tbe event
of any diqrute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his/her decisioa on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA; RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in diis Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and things
developed or obtained during die performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, suixeys, Ruq>s, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
rqjfoductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,

9.2.

93.

9.4.

9.5.

10.

11.

11.1.

II.1.1

11.13

11.1.3

11.1.4

113.

11.2.1

11.23

11.2.3

11.2.4

12.

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

13.

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unimisbed.
Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant to
tbe State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all dat" tor
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for an ,r
purpose whatsoever.
No data diall be subject to copyright In die United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and afta the Effisctive Date all data, and any property which has been received
from the State or purcha.sed with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be tbe propeny of the State, and shall be returned to the State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agrecmmt to the contrary, all obligations of the Stale hereunder, including,
mtbont limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued^ipn^riatioD of funds, and in no cvwt shall the State
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds, hi tbe event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the State shall
have tbe right to withhold payment until such flinds become available, if ever, and
shall have the rî t to tenDinate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such terminotion.

EVENT OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES.

Any one or more oftbe following acts or omissions of the Grantee shall con.«tinjte
an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any rcpoil required hereunder; or '
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event ofDefault, the State may take any one, or more,
or all, of the following actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying tbe Event of Default and requiring if
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
tbir^ (30) days frnrh die date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and

Give the Grantee a written notice spccilying die Event of Default and suspr- ' -g
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portioi. )
Grwt Amount which would otherwise aecrue to the Grantee during the peiiod
from the dfltp. of such notice until such lime as the State determines that the
Grantee has cured the Event of Defeult shall never be paid to Che Grantee; and
Set off against any other obligation the Statc may owe to the OrantM any daiiiage.4
the State suftbrs by reason of any Event ofDefault; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, die Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
later ih»n fifteen (15) days after tbe date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Terminaticm Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including tbe date oftermination.
In die event of Temilnation under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Temunation Report by the Stats shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and inchiding
the date of tennination.

Id the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisitms, die approval of such a Temiiiiatioo Report by tbe State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by tbe State as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire <x of
the goveming body of the locality or localities in which the Pnqect is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the rerview or
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approval of Jhc undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall parricipatc in 17.2.
any decision relarmg to this Agreement which affects bis or her personal intere.«
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she

)  is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.

14. r,RANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE, In the peffonnuncc of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgranlee of 18.
the Grantee arc in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agaits
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee mir any of its officcis,
employees, agents, members, subcontroclors or subgrantees, shall have authority
to bind the State nor are they cnliticd to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

15. ASSrCNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or 19.
otherwise transfer any interest in this A^eemcnt without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranlcd by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the Stale. 20.

16. INDEMNlFrCATlON. The Grantee shall defend, indemniiy Md hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claitns,
liabilities or pco^ties asserted ̂ jainst the Slate, its officers and aiiployees, by 21.
or on behalf of any person, on account of, ba.scd on, resulting from, arising out
of (or Nkdiich may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the Grantee
or subcontraccor, or subgranlee or other ogenl of the Grantee. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, notliing herein contained shall be deemed lo constitute a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of ihe State, which imrrainity is hereby reserved to
the State. This covenant shall survive the tenninallon of this agreement. 22.

17. INSURANCE.

17.1 The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall 23.
require any subcontractor, subgranlee or assignee performing Piriject work lo
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance:

17.1.1 Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurotKC' for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and

17.1 J General liability insurance against all claims ofbodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amotmts not less than S1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and 5500,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 ofthis paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in the State ofNcw Hamp.shire, issued by underwriien accq)tftblc
to die State, and authorized to do business in the State ofNew Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the State, certificates of insurance for all rcnewal(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expbaiion
date of each insuraiKC policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Slate to enforce any provisions
hereofafter any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver ofits rights with regard
to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event ofDefault
shall be deemed a waiver of any provi.sions hcieof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prqiaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended. U-aived or discharged only
by an instrumdit in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Govenior and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. iTiis Agrccmcnl shall
be construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit ofthe parlies and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used m dcicmrining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTTES. The parties hereto do not intend lo benefit any third parlies
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Ilus Agreement, which maybe executed in a number
of counte^~aTts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPF.fTlAI.'PROVISlONS. llie aildilibnal or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hcrcld air incorporated as part of this agreement.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
EXHIBITS TO GRANT

Exhibit A Special Provisions

Exhibit B Scope of Services

Exhibit C Budget

Certificate of Good Standing

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances

FTA Master Agreement

Federal Clauses —

2CFRPart 200

Social Service Documents to Include:

501 (c) 3
Financial Report
Board of Directors ^

Key Personnel and Salaries
Resumes



Revised 05/15/2025

TRl-COUNTY COMMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A.I. Amend G-1 Section 2. "SCOPE OF WORK" by adding the following:

2.1. The Grantee may change the Project scope, including related services, only with the prior
written agreement of the State and in accordance with applicable Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) requirements.

A.2. Amend G-1 Section 3, "AREA COVERED" by adding the following:

3.1. Services may extend to adjacent states with prior written approval from the State. The State
reserves the right to require formal cost allocation measures.

A.3. Amend G-1 Section 5. "GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT:
VOUCHERS: PAYMENT" by adding the following:

5.6. The grant amount, as identified in Exhibit C, Budget, represents the net Federal/State
amount(s) to be paid to-the Grantee. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide, and document
the availability of, local funds sufficient to meet the project cost more than the Grant Price
Limi^tipn.

5.7. The Grantee shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the State,
together with all information to support the request. Such requests for payment shall be
properly completed and signed. Requests for payments must be for allowable costs only as
defined in 2 CFR Part 200. as amended. No requests for advance payment will be accepted
by the State.

5.8. Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine the
allowability of costs, hi connection with this review, the State may demand production of
(and the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any documents and records described in Section
7.

5.9. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records
required by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due
and owing to the Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this
Agreement.

5.10. Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by the State and FTA of all reports required by this
Agreement is a condition precedent to final payment (i.e., payment for the last month or
portion thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of the
State and Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The final payment may be retained and
withheld pending receipt and satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this
Agreement and resolution of all pending matters.

A.4. Amend G-1 Section 6. "COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS" by adding the following:

6.1. The Grantee shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
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employment, notices setting forth the provisions of the Federal Title VI noo-discrimination
requirements.

6.2. The Grantee shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, age,
creed, sex, or national origin.

6.3. The provisions of 2 CFR 200. as amended, shall apply to the local administration of this
agreement and any subgrantee under this agreement.

6.4. In the event of any conflict between the requirements within this Exhibit related to Federal
requirements and Federal Clauses incorporated elsewhere into this Agreement, the Federal
Clauses take precedence.

A.5, Amend G-1 Section 9. "DATA; RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS" by adding the
foUowiDg;

9.6. The following,restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of this
agreement:

9.6.1 - Except for its.own internal use, the Grantee may not publish or.reproduce suclvdata ib
■ whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor tnay the Gr^tee authome others'to
do so, without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA may have
either released or approved the release of such data to the public.

9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200. as amended, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non
exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to
authQrize others to use, for, Federal purposes, any work developed upder a grant,

•' cooperative' agreement, subgrant, or third party grant, irrespective of whether 'a
copyright has been obtained; and any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-
recipient, or third party contractor purchases ownership with Fedefal assistafice.

9.7. It is FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Grantee understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.6, FTA may make
available to any grantee, or subgrantee its license in the copyright to the date derived under
this Agreement or a copy of the data first produced under Ais Agreement.

9.8. The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State and United States, their
officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any
liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation of
the proprietary rights, copyri^ts. or right of privacy, arising out of the publication,
translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this
Agreement.

9.9. Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any patent
or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the
United States under any patent.

9.10. Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 are not applicable to material furnished to the Grantee by the State
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or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement, provided that
such incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.

9.11. If the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under the project shall
become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the State or FTA
may direct.

A.6. Amend G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATION" by adding the following;

12.5. The termination report must be accepted by the State and the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) prior to final payment.

12.6. Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Grantee
which, by the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the
completion of the Services and upon payment of the Grant Price, this Agreement, and all
obligations of the parties hereunder, shall cease and shall be without recourse to the parties
hereto.

12.8. Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary,
either the State or, except where notice of default has been given to the Grantee hereunder,
the Grantee may terminate this Agreement without cause upon .thirty (30) days' written
notice.

A.7. Amend G-1 Section 15. "ASSIGNMENTS/AND/SUBCONTRACTS" by adding the
following:

15.1. The Grantee shall cause the provisions of this grant to be inserted in all subgrants for any
work covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each subgrantee
The Grantee shall take such action with respect to any subgrant as the State may direct as a
means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. The Grantee
shall ensure that any subgrantee/contractor has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals
required for the performance of grant services.

A.8. Amend G-1 by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the perfonnance of the Services
described in Exhibit B and which satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200. as amended.

EQUIPMENT: An article of nonexpendable, tangible personal having a useful life of more
than one year and an acquisition cost which equals or exceeds the lesser of the capitalization
level established by the governmental unit for financial statement purposes, or $5,000.
Includes rolling stock and all other such property used in the provision of public transit
services.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures, and/or maps submitted to the
State detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Grants modified and
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approved by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation
services being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include funds from subgrants,
contracts, purchase of service agreements, and excess matching funds diat directly benefit
the transportation service.

SECTION 5339: Bus and Bus Facilities program

STATE: The State of New Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation,
Bureau of Rail and Transit.

A.9. Amend G-1 by adding "ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING. AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

26. ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING, AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

26.1. Maintenance of Records. The Grantee shall keep and maintain the records, documents,
and accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The
Grantee shall maintain, and make available to the State and FTA, records relating to
complaints and comments received from the public. In the event, the State disputes the
Gihntee's operations or records as submitted for payment dfodierwise, the fmal resolutioh
shall rest with the State.

26.2. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a
period of three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of the resolution of all
matters relating to this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Grantee's
normal business hours, and as often as the State or FTA may demand, the Grantee shall
make available to the State and FTA or their designees all records pertaining to matters
covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall permit the State and FTA to audit, examine,
and reproduce such records, and to m^e audits of all contracts, grants, invoices, materials,
payrolls, records of personnel, Data (as defined in G-1 section 9.1), and other information
relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Grantee"
includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Grantee in 1.3 of G-1.

26.3. General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS). The Grantee shall generate and keep updated
General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the
National Transit Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the
Department upon request.

26.3.1 The Bipartisan Infrastructure Law amended 49 U.S.C. 5335 (al to require the Federal
Transit Administration to collect "geographic service area coverage" data through the
NTD.

A.10. Amend G-1 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Section
27:
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27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. The following terras and
conditions apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with funds
provided through this or other Agreeraents between the State and the Grantee:

27.1. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200. FTA §5339 Circulars
4220. IG and 9040.1H and fiiture amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49
CFR Parts 661 and 663. as applicable.

27.2. The Grantee shall ensure that all Contractors comply with construction materials
requirements set forth in the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act fllJA) Pub. L. No. 117-
^ which includes the Build America. Biiv America Act (Actl Pub. L No 117-58. div. G SS
70901-17. The Contractor shall purchase construction materials for projects in accordance
with the Act, Federal implementation guidance M-22-!l 1. and other applicable federal laws,
regulations, and guidance.

27.3. As applicable, all vehicles shall be purchased by the State unless the Grantee has received
prior approval from the State to procure vehicles.

27.4. All other equipment with a cost more than five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased
by the Grantee subject to the prior approval of the State.

27.5. Title to all project equipment shall be in the name of the Grantee; provided, however, that
in order to secure the complete performance of this Agreement, the Grantee shall give the
State a security interest in all such equipment at the time of purchase and shall execute
financing statements and do all other acts necessary or useful to the perfection of that
interest and the renewal thereof. In connection with the purchase of any motor vehicles
pursuant to this Agreement, the Grantee shall give the State a security interest in the motor
vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take all steps necessary to protect the State's
security interest, including taking steps to identify the State as a lien holder of such motor
vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

27.6. In the event that this agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property become
the property of the State, and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equipment
shall be transferred to the State as soon as feasible.

27.7. Project equipment will be disposed of in accordance with FTA Circular 9040. IH as
amended and the State Management Plan unless written approval is received from the State.

A.11. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing
of all nonexpendable property involved in this Agreement. The Grantee shall submit to the
State a certification that the equipment is still being used in accordance with the terms of
the Agreement. The inventory listing and equipment certification shall be supplied to the
State on an annual basis.

A.12. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:

29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. The Grantee shall be responsible for the maintenance
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and repair of all equipment related to this Agreement. The Grantee shall maintain all such
equipment at a hi^ level of cleanliness, safety, and mechanical soundness. As applicable,
the Grantee shall certify that a proper maintenance plan that meets or exceeds the original
equipment manufacturer's preventive maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle
maintenance plans must be approved by the Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair,
and physical improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Grantee and at
a location specified by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the State of any changes in this
location. The Grantee ftirther agrees to maintain, repair, or make any physical improvement
to equipment as requested by the State. The State, FTA, and/or their designees shall have
the right to conduct periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper maintenance
and repair.

A.13. Amend G-1 by adding "VEHICLE STORAGE" as section 30:

30. VEHICLE STORAGE. As applicable, with respect to any motor vehicles purchased in
whole or part under this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Grantee shall
park or garage each vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for
each vehicle. The Grantee shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in

■  such a marmer that its daily operations are not impaired or curtailed by conditions of weather
or any other circumstances. The Grantee shall notify the State of the location of the garaging
site and any relocation.

A.14. Amend G-1 by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 31:

31. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. As applicable, all project equipment shall be inspected and
certified by the Department of Safety and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle
Safety Standards and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United
States Department of Transportation, and by the New Hampshire Department of Safety
under RSA 266:72-a. in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

31.2. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide the State with fiill, ^d prompt written
notificatioD of any accident involving any vehicle used in its services. In addition, the
Grantee shall be responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law.

31.3, The Grantee shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset
Management or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by
NHDOT for compliance purposes.

A.15. Amend G-1 by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 32:

32. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Grantee is
conceived or first actually reduced to practice during or under this grant, which invention,
improvement, or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the United States or any
foreign country, the Grantee shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed report.
The rights and responsibilities of the Grantee and the State with respect to such invention,
improvement, or discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws,
regulations, policies, and any waiver thereof.

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 33:
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33. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the
Grantee, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any
company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee, any
fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent
upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of
this warranty, the State shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in
its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the
full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or
contingent fee.



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

B. 1 Capital Purchases

1.1 The Grantee, Tri-Coiinty Community Action Program, Inc. (TCCAP) (hereinafter the
"Grantee"), will procure the following capital items for use in accordance with
requirements associated with its FTA §5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program funding
within the State:

1.1.1 ITS Equipment Base Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) software to automate the
passenger eligibility, trip reservations, scheduling, brokering, dispatching,
routing, billing, data tracking, and reporting functions of demand-response
transportation services, thus enhancing TCCAP's ability to provide transportation
services. The ITS system is an eligible capital expense under Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) guidelines.

1.1.1.1 Maintenance/support pf the software for up to five years is eligible to the.
extent it is im eligible capital expense under the FTA §5339 program.

1.2 Grant flmdihg for all projects will be provided by the State as shown in Exhibit C.

1.3 The Grantee will purchase the capital equipment in compliance with all applicable
Federal regulations and guidance including FTA Circular 4220. IG. "Third Party
Contracting Guidance," or the most recent.

1.4 Prior to any capital procurement, the Grantee shall submit appropriate procurement
documentation demonstrating, compliance with Federal procurement requirements,
including FTA Third Party Procurement guidelines per FTA Circular 4220. IG or the
most recent, to the State for review and approval. Such documentation may include, but
is not limited to, the following:

1.4.1 Verification of utilizing NH's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
directory to invite a DBE to vie for the procurement;

1.4.2 Federal Clauses that will be required to be acknowledged by the vendor, as
applicable to procurements oAer than micro-purchases, and/or fair and
reasonable determination for micro-purchases;

1.4.3 Evidence of appropriate procurement methodology demonstrating fair and
open competition, e.g., small procurement, Request for Proposals.

1.4.4 Independent Cost Estimate and Cost/Price Analysis

1.5 Upon written approval, the Grantee may proceed with the procurement and submit an
invoice to the State for reimbursement of project expenses in compliance with Federal
guidance.



1.6 Upon the conclusion of the procurement, the Grantee shall submit final documentation
to the State.

1.7 The Grantee may submit a written request to the State's designated representative to
modify the type and/or quantity of the capital equipment detailed in the scope and
budget, provided that said changes are within the grant budget amount. Said written
request must contain sufficient details to support and substantiate the requested
change(s). Within 30 days of receipt of the Grantee's written request, the State will
provide a written decision to the Grantee as to whether or not approval is granted.



TRI-COUIVTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

C. 1 The Grant Limitation price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) §5339 portion of the eligible project costs. Federal hinds are
granted as follows:

Project FTA Section 5339
FTA

Funding
FTA

%

State

Capital
Match

Local

Match

Total

Project
Cost

1 Disnatchins Software $80,000 80% $0 $20,000 $100,000

Total Proiect Fundins $80,000 $0 $20,000 $100,000

Total Grant Funding $80,00C

1.1 Funds are contingent upon Federal appropriations. No State hinds will be requested.

C.2 Pre-approval of any procurement is required by.the State as detailed in Exhibit B.

C.3 As appiicabie, the Grantee may seek reimbursement for these funds by submitting individual
invoices for projects as completed. Requests shall be monthly or less frequent.

C.4 The invoice(s) must include verification of source(s) of matching funds.

C.5 Pre-approval to modify the type and/or capital equipment is required as detailed in §1.7,
Exhibit B.



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanian, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRl-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRl-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. 1 ftirther certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary ofState's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 63020

Certificate Number; 0007142560

I&.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlao

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I  Sandy Alonzo . hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of _Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on May 17th , 20 ,^ . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting.

(Date)

VOTED; That Jeanne Robillard. Randal Pilotte. Brenda Gaone (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Sig'natory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, INC. to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
positlon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:_5LSQi^̂  Signature of Elect^
Name: Sandy AIc^z
Title:

cer

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORD* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMSD/YYTY)

06/18/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of auch endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

contact undsey Goodrlch

PKoFxti- (603)669-3218 K/C.Nol: (603)64&4331
ADDMss- manch.ceftsigcrossagency.com

MSURER(S) AFFORDINO COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURERA
Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

TrI-Ccunty Community Action Program, Inc.

30 Exchange St

Berlin ' NH 03570-1911

INSURER B
Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY

iHSJri
TYPE OF INSURANCE

[TODC
JNSS

I5U5R
ms

POLICY NUMBER
KLICVCPP

(MMfljoMnm
POLICY EXP

(MM/PD/YYYYI UMfTS
LTR

X COKMERCUL GENERAL UABIUTY

OCCURClAIMS-MADE

OENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

□POLICY
I PRO

JECT □ LOC

OTHER:

L

PHPK2571941 07/01/2025 07/01/2026

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTEO
PREMISES (Ea cccurrencal

MED EXP (Any 0(w ptfW)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMPlOP AGG

1,000,000

100.000

5,000

1,000.000

3,000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTO

GdM&iNebSi/JGLe LIMIT
lEa ■cddentl

S 1,000,000

X

BOOLY INJURY (P«r panon)

OWNED
AUTOSONLY
HIRED
AinOSONLY

UMBRELLA UA8

EXCESS UAB

OEO

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2571943 07/01/2025 07/01/2026 BODILY INJURY (Par acddant)

THBPERTTCnaXGE
fPar acddericl

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE 2,000.000

PHUB870544 07/01/2025 07/01/2026 AGGREGATE 2,000,000

X RETENTION t "'0.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECLnnVE
OFRCER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
II yaa, dascflba tmdar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

PER
STATLfTE

OTH-
ER

Y/N

H R01892HCHS2025-01 (3a.) NH 01/01/2025 01/01/2026 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD101. Additional Ramarlw Sehadula, may ba attachad » mora apaca la raqulrtd)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department of Transportation Rail and Transit
PO Box 483

7 Hazen Drive

Concord NH 03302-0483

SHOULD ANY OP THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIve

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reseived.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2024 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA ^
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant:

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: {check here) .

Or.

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Category Certification

01 Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying )

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabibties
Programs

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

CERTTFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE PAGE

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

Name of the Applicant:

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf of the Applicant, I declare that it has duly authorized me to make these
Certifications and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thu.s, it agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulations,
and requirements, follow applLcablc federal gmdance, and comply with the Certifications and Assurances as
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each qjplication its Authorized Representative makes to the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, irrespective of whether the individual that acted on his or
her Applicant's behalf continues to represent it.

The Certifications and Assurances the Applicant selects apply to each Award for which it now seeks, or may
later seek federal assistance to be awarded by FTA during the federal fiscal year.

The Applicant affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances It has selected in the
statements submitted vrith this document and any other submission made to FTA, and acknowledges that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986,31 U.S,C. § 3801 el seq., and implementing U.S. DOT regulations,
"Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR pan 31, apply to any certification, assurance or submission made to
FTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 apply to any ccrtificatioa, assurance, or submission made in
connection with a federal public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute
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In signing this document, I declare under pcnaltiK of perjury that the foregoing Certifications and Assurances, and
any other statements made by me oni)ehaIfoftreW>plicant are true and accurate.

Date:

"Roto'AVGr<^ Authorized Representative of Applicant



FFV 2024 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (ETA) Federal Fiscal Ycar 2024 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipicnts to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incoiporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

1 acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2024 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement rem^ in force for the term of the
agreement.

CAP ^
Name ofJVgency Oafe

Nameof Authorized Official Signature



TCCAP

Operations

$ 80,000

Sole

Paula Bennett

System.Web.Ul.WebControls.TextBox

New Hampshire DOT

7 Hazen Drive

Concord, New Hampshire 03302-0483

(603) 271-3734

https;/Avww.nh.gov/dot/



TTie following dauses are for inclusion into procurement documents, but can also be inserted into contracftial agreements. However, additional clauses and
certification may be required for contractual agreements.



ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

1. Record Retention. The Contractor will retain, and wili require its subcontractors of aii tiers to retain, complete and readily accessibie records related In
whole or In part to the contract, including, but not limited to, data, documents, reports, statistics, leases, subcontracts, arrangements, other third party
Contracts of any type, and supporting materials related to those records, (a) A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the bid price. "• )
•bid guarantee" must consist of a firm commitment such as a bid bond, certified check, or other negotiable Instrument accompanying a Wd as assurance
that the bidder will, upon acceptance of the bid. execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified.

2. Retention Period. The Contractor agrees to comply with the record retention requirements in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.334. The Contractor shall
maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this Contract for a period of at not less than three (3) years after the date of termination or
expiration of this Contract, except in the event of Btigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, in which case records shall
be maintained until the disposition of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.

3. Access to Records. The Contractor agrees to provide sufficient access to FTA and its contractors to inspect and audit records and information, including
such records and information the contrEtctor or Its subcontractors may regard as confidential or proprietary, related to performance of this contract in
accordance with 2 CFR § 200.337.

4. Access to the Sites of Performance. The Contractor agrees to permit FTA and its contractors access to the sites of performance under this contract in
accordance with 2 CFR § 200.337.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT(ADA)

The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended. 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., which
requires that accessibie facilities and services be made available to persons wftii disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act, and with
the Architectural Barriers act of 1968, as amended. 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and pubBc accommodations be accessible to
persons with disabflities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act In addition, the contractor agrees to comply wRh any and all applical>le
requirements issued by the FTA, DOT, DOJ, U.S. GSA, U.S. EEOC, U.S. FCC. any subsequent amendments thereto and any other nondiscriminatlon
statute(8) that may ap^y to the Project.

CHARTER SERVICE

The contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(d). 5323(r). and 49 C.F.R. part 604, which provides that Recipients and subreclplents of FTA
assistance are prohibited from providing charter service using federally funded equipment or facilitiGs if ttwe Is at least one private charter operator willing
and able to provide toe service, except as permitted under 1. Federal transit laws, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5323(d); 2. FTA regulations, "Charter Service," 49
C.F.R. part 604; 3. Any other federal Charter Service regulations; or 4. Federal guidance, except as FTA determines otherwise in writing. ^
The contractor agrees that if It engages in a pattern of vlotalions of FTA's Charter Service regulations, FTA may require corrective measures or impose
remedies on it. These corrective measures and remedies may Include: 1. Barring It or any sulx»nlractor operating public transportation under Its Award that
has provided prohibited charter service from receiving federal assistance from FTA; 2. Wrtoboldlr>g an amount of federal assistance as provided by Appendix
D to part 604 of FTA's Charter Service regufeltons; or 3. Any other appropriate rem^ that may apply. The contractor should also include toe substance of
this clause in each subcontract toat may involve operating public transit services.

CHANGES TO FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

Federal requirements that appty to toe Rec^ent or the Award, the accompanying Underlying Agreement and any Amendments thereto may change due to
changes In federal law. regulation, other requirements, or guidance, or changes In the Recipient's Urrderlying Agreement IrxAiding any information
incorporated by referertce and made part of that Underlying Agreement artd

Applicable changes to those federal requirements will apply to each Third Party Agreement and parties thereto at any tier.

CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The following Federal Civil Rights laws and reguialions apply to alt contracts.

The Contractor and any subcontractor agree to comply with all the requirements prcrfiibiting discrimination on the basis of race, colw, or national origin of the
Titte Vi of the CM) Rights Action of 1964, as amended 62 U.S.C 2000d, and U.S. DOT regulation "l^ondiscrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs of the
Department of Transportation - Effectuation of the TitJe Vi of toe Civil rights Act, *49 C.F. R. Part 21 and any Implementing requirement FTA may Issue.

1 Federal Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Requlrements.These include, but are not limited to:

a) Nondiscrimination In Federal Public Transportation Programs. 49 U.S.C. § 5332, covering projects, programs, and activities financed under 49 U.S.C.
Chapter 53, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, cdof. religion, national origin, sex (Including sexual orientation and gender identity), disability, or
age, end prohibits discrimination In employment or truslness (toportunity.

b) Prohibition against Employmeni Discrimination. Title VII of tfie Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amer>ded, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Executive Order No. 11246,
"Equal Employment Opportunity," September 24,1965, as amended, prohibit discrimination in employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or
national origin. J

2 Nondiscriminatlon on the Basis of Sex. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. § 168Tet seq. and imptementing
Federal regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Progranns or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance," 49 C.F.R. part 25
prohibit discrimination on the l^asis of sex.



3 Nondiacriminatlon on the Basis of Age. The "Age Discrimination Act of 1975." as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.. and Department of Heaith and
Human Services imptementing regulations, "Nondiscrimlnatlon on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Rnandai Assistance," 45
C.F.R. part 90, prohibit discrimination by participants in federally assisted programs against irKlividuais on the tasis of age. The Age Discrimination in
Employment Act (ADEA), 29 U.S.C. § 621 el seq., and Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) Implementing regulations, "Age Discrimination
in Employment Act." 29 C.F.R. part 1625, also prohibit employment discrimination against Individuals age 40 and over on the basis of age.

^/ederal Protections for individuals with Disabilities. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (ADA), 42 U.S.C. § 12101 etseq..
prohibits discrimination against qualified Individuals with disabiSties in programs, activities, and services, and imposes specific requirements on public and
private entities. Third party contractors must comply with their responsibilities under Titles I, ii, ill, IV, and V of the ADA in employment, public senrices, puWIc
accommodations, telecommunications, and other provisions, many of which are subject to regulations issued by other Federal agencies.

Civil Rights and Equal Opportunity
The Agency is an Equal Opportunity Employer. As such, the Agency agrees to comply with all applicable Federal civil rights laws and implementing
regulations. Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal laws or regulations, the^ency agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C.
§ 5323(h) (3) by not using any Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications. Under this
Contract, the Contractor shall at all times comply with the foilowJng requirements and shall indude these requirements in each subcontract entered into as
part thereof.

1. Nondiscrimlnatlon. In accordance with Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332. the Contractor agrees that It will not discriminate against any employee
or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, natioral origin, sex, disability, or age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with
applicable Federal implementing regulations and other Implementing requirements FTA may issue.

2. Race, Color, Religion, National Origin, Sex. In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e etseq., and Federal
transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of
Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations. "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. chapter
60, and Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity in Federal Employment," September 24,1985,42 U.S.C. §2000e note, as amended by
any later Executive Order that amends or supersedes it referenced In 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note. The Contractor agrees to take affirrhatlve action to ensure
that applicants are employed, and that emptoyees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, or sex (including
sexual orientation and gender identity). Such action shall Include, but not be limited to, the following: employmenL promotion, demotion or transfer,
recnjiiment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination: rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requlreme.nts FT.A may issue.

3. Age. In accordance with the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621-634, U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (U.S.
EEOC) regulations, "Age Discrimination In Employment Act," 29C.F.R. part 1625, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §6101 et
seq.. U.S. Health and Human Services regulations, "Nohdi^minatiori on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receivirlg Federal Financial
Assistance." 45 C.F.R. part 90, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332. the Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and
prospective employees fr>r reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any Implementing requirements FTA may issue.

4.DlsabiI]tie8. In accordance with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended. 29 U.S.C. § 794, the Americans with DisabiDtles Act of 1990,
amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 4151 et seq., and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. §
^2, the Contractor agrees that It will not discriminate against Individuals on the basis of disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any

irnpiementlng requirements FTA may issue.

5.Promoting Free Speech and Religious Liberty. The Contractor shall ensure that Federal fonding Is expended In full accordance with the U.S.
Constitution, Federal Law. and statutory and public policy requirements: including, but not limited to, those protecting free speech, religious Btrerly, public
welfare, the environment, and prohibiting discrimination.



DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689). A covered transaction (see 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220) must not be ^
entered into wfth any party Bsted on the govemmentwide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), In accordance with the 0MB , 1
gukJelines at 2 C.F.R. 180 that Implement Executive Orders 12549 (31 U.S.C. § 6101 note. 51 Fed. Reg. 6370.) and 12689 (31 U.S.C. § 6101
note, 54 Fed. Reg. 34131), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains tî e names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise
excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared Ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. The Recipient
agrees to include, and require each Third Party Participant to Include, a similar provision in each tower tier covered transaction, ensuring that each
lower tier Third Party Participant

(1) CompDes witii federal debarment and suspension requirements; and

(2) Reviews the SAM at https://www.sam.gov, if necessary to comply with U.S. DOT regulations, 2 CFR Part 1200.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (D6E)

(Does not apply to projects fully funded by the Tribal Transportation Program (TTP).)

It l« the policy of the /^ncy and the United States Department of Transportation ("DOT") that DIsadvantaged Business Enterprises CDBE's"), as defined
herein and In the Federal regulations published at 49 C.F.R. part 26, shall have an equal opportunity to participate in DOT-asslsted contracts.

The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract The contractor
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 C.F.R. part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-asslsted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out
these requirements is a material breach of this contract which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the Agency deems
appropriate, which may include, t>ut is r>ot Dmited to:

(1) Withholding monthly progress payments;

(2) Assessirtg sanctions;

(3) Liquidated damages; and/or -

(4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as norwespor>8ibte. 49 C.F.R. § 26.13(b).

Prime contractors are required to pay subcontractors for satisfactory performance of their contracts no later tiwn 30 days from receipt of each payment the
Agency makes to the prime contractor. 49 C.F.R. § 26.29(a).

Flnalfy, for contracts wtth defined QBE contract goals, the contractor shall utilize the specific DBEs listed unless the contractor obtains the Agency's writt^ )
conserrt; and that, unless the Ager>c/s consent is provided, the contractor shall not be entitled to any payment for work or material unless it is perfcnned o.
supplied by the listed QBE. 49 C.F.R. § 26.53(0 (1).

ENERGY CONSERVATION

The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency, which are contained in the state energy conservation
plan issued in compliartce with the Energy PoDcy and Conservation Act (42 U.S.C.§ 6201).

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as foDows:

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative actior> to ensure that appCcants are employed, and that employees are treated during
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex. sexual orientation, gender identity, or natior«l origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited
to the fbllowing: Employment, upgrading, derrwfion, or transfer, recnjitment or recruitment advertising: layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of
compensation; and selection for training. Including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post In conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination dause.

(2) The contractor will, in all solidtations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that aD qualified applicants will
receive consideration for em^oyment wtthout regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or nationaj origin.

(3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or
ar^Icant has inquired about discussed, or disdosad the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shaD
rtot apply to Irtstances tn which an employee who has access to the compensation Information of other employees or applicants as a part of such
employee's essential Job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to Indiwduals who do not otherwise have access to
such Information, unless such disdosure Is In response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action,
induding an investigation conducted by the emptoyer, or Is consistent wtth the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.

(4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which It has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or
urvteristanding, a notice to be provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments
under section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24.1965, and shall post copies of the notice In conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants for employment. j
(5) The contrador will comply with aO provisions of Executive Order i 1246 of September 24,1965, and of the ailes, regulations, and r^ant orders of the -
Secretary of Lat>or.

(6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and by the rules, regulations, and



ordere of the Secfetary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agerwy and the
Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compSance wttti such rules, regulations, and orders.

(7) In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimlnatlon clauses of this contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this
contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended In whole or In part and the contractor may be declared Ineligible for further Government contracts in

■^rdance with procedures authorized In Executive Order 11246 of September 24.1965. and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked
provided In Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of l-abor. or as othenvise provided bylaw.

(8) The contractor will Include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) In every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding
upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the
Secretary of L^bcr as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompllance: Provided, however, that In the event the contractor
becomes ^nvo^ed In, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the United
States to enter Into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

FLY AMERICA

a) Definitions. As used in this clause—
1) "Intematlonal air ti-ansportation" means transportation by air t)etween a place in the United States arjd a place outside the United States or between two
places both of which are outside the United States. 2) "United States" means the 50 States, the District of Columbia, and outlying areas. 3) "U.S.-flag air
carrier" means an air carrier holding a certificate under49 U.S.C. Chapter 411.

b) When Federal funds are used to fund travel. Section 5 of the International Air Transportation Fair Competilive Practices Act of 1974 (49 U.S.C. 40118) (Fly
America Act) requires contractors, Agencys, and others use U.S.-flag air carriers for U.S. Govemmenl-flnanced International air transportation of personnel
(and their personal effects) or property, to the extent that service by those carriers is available. It requires the Comptroller General of the United States, in the
absence of satisfactory proof of the necessity for foreigrvflag air transportation, to disallow expenditures from funds, appropriated or otherwise established
for the account of the United States, for international air transportation secured aboard a foreign-flag air earner if a U.S.-flag air carrier is available to provide
such services.

c) if available, the Contractor, in performing work under this contract, shall use U.S.-flag carriers for international air transportation of personnel (and their
personal effects) or property,

d) In the event that the Contractor selects a carrier other than a U.S.-flag air carrier for intemaficnal air trarisportation, the Contractor shall include a
statement on vouchers Invoiving such transportation essentially as follows;

Stfltament of UnavailabiliN of U-S.-Flao Air Carriere . •. .
international air transportation of persons (and their personal effects) or property by U.S.-flag air carrier was not available or rl was necessary to use forelgrw
flag air carrier service for the foUowing reasons. See FAR § 47.403. (State reasons):

Contractor shall Include the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (e). in each subcontract or purchase under this contract that may involve
\mational air transportation.

INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS

The provlslpns within Include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Condittons required under the Unifonn Administrative Reoulrements, Cost Prfociples, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR § 200). whether or not expressly set forth 'n the preceding contract provisions. Al! contractual provisions
required by DOT, detailed in 2 CFR § 200 or as amended by 2 CFR § 1201, or the most recent verston of FTA Circular 4220.1 are hereby incorporated by
reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all mandated terms shall be deemed to control In the event of a conflict witii other provisions
contained In tills Contract. The Contractor shall not perform any acL fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any request which would cause a
vicrfatlon of the FTA terms and conditions.

NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES

The Redpient and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by ttie Federal Govemment in or approval of the solidlatlon or
award of the undertytng Contract absent the express written consent by the Federal Government the Federal Govemment is not a party to this Contract and
shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Recipient, Contractor or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any
matter resulting from the underfying Contract. The Contractor agrees to Include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or In part with
Federal assistance provided by the FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to
its provisions.

NOTICE TO FTA AND U.S. DOT INSPECTOR GENERAL OF INFORMATION RELATED TO FRAUD, WASTE,
ABUSE, OR OTHER LEGAL MATTERS

If a current or prospective legal matter that may affect the Federal Government emerges, the Recipient must promptly notify the FTA Chief Counsel and FTA
Regional Counsel for the Region In which the Redpient is located. The Recipient must Include a similar notification requirement in Its Third Party
Agreements and must require each Third Party Participant to include an equivalent provision in its subagreements at every tier, for any agreement that Is a
'covered transaction" according to 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 12(X).220.

(1) The types of legal matters that require notification include, but are not limited to, a major dispute, breach, defaulL litigation, or naming the Federal
Govemment as a party to lltigaUon or a legal disagreement in any forum for any reason.

■ .Matters that may affect the Federal Government indude, but are not limited to, the Federal Govemment's Interests in the Award, the accompanying
Slerfying Agreement, and any Amendments thereto, or the Federal Government's administration or enforcement of federal laws, regulations, and

requirements.

(3) The Recipient must promptly notify the U.S. DOT Inspector General In addition to the FTA Chief Counsel or Regional Counsel for the Region in which the
Redpient is located. If the Redpient has knowledge of potential fraud, waste, or abuse occurring on a Project receiving assistance from FTA. The
notification provision applies if a person has or may have submitted a felse claim under the False Claims AcL 31 U.S.C. § 3729 et seq., or has or may have



committed a criminal or civil violation of law pertaining to such matters as fraud, conflict of interest bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct. This r^ponslbility
occurs whether the Project is subject to this Agreement or another agreement between the Recipient and FTA. or an agreement Involving a principal, officer,
employee, agent, or Third Party Participant of the Recipient It aisp applies to subcontractors at any tier. Knowledge, as used in this paragraph, indud^, but
is not Bmtted to, knowledge of a criminal or dvH investigation by a Federal, state, or local law enforcement or other investigative agency, a criminal Indictment
or cMI complaint or probable cause that could support a criminal Indictment, or any other credible Information in the possession of the Recipient.

PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS ^

The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Ad of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT
regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies." 49 C.F.R. part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Projed. Upon executior> of the undeilying contrad, the
Contractor certifies or affinns the truthfulness and accuracy of any statemenl H has made, it makes. It may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the
underlying contrad or the FTA assisted projed for which this contrad vwxk is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the
Contractor further aci<rK)wtedges that if It makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the
Federal Govemment reserves the right to Impose the penalties of the Program Fraud CMI Remedies Ad of 1986 on Ute Contractor to the extent the Federal
Government deems appropriate.

The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement submission, or certification to
the Federal Govemment under a contract connected with a projed that Is financed In whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA
under the authdrity of 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, the Govemment reserves the right to Impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5323(1) on the
Contractor, to the extent the Federal Govemn>ent deems appropriate.

The Contrador agrees to Include the above two clauses in each subcontrad financed In v^le or In part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is
further agreed ttwl the clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subconlrador who wlB be subject to the provisions.

.  J



PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT.

a) Recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:

' V Procure or obtain covered telecommunications equipment or services:
^Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain covered telecommunications equipment or services; or

j) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain covered telecommunications equipment or services.

(b) As described in section 889 of PubDc Law 115-232, "covered telecommunications equipment or senrlcos" means any of the foDowing:

(1) Telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);

(2) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security
purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology
Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any sut>sldiary or affiOale of such entities);

(3) Telecommunications or video surveillarjce services provided by such entitles or using such equipment;

(4) Teiecommunlcatlons or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with
the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or ,controlled by, or
otherwise connected to, the govemment of a covered foreign country;

(c) For the purposes of this section, "covered telecommunications equipment or services' also include systems that use covered teiecommunications
equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.

(d) In Implementing the prohiWtion under section 889 of Public Law 115-232, heads of executive agencies administering loan, grant; or subsidy programs
must priorttize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonat^ necessary for those
affected entities to transition from covered telecommunications equipment or services, to procure replacement equipment or sen/ices, and to ensure that
communications service to users and customers Is sustained.

(e) When the recipient or sutjredpieht accepts a loan or grant, it is certifying that it will comply with the prohiWtion on covered lelecomrhunicatiohs
equipment and services in this section. The recipient or subrecipient is not requred to certify that funds will not be expended on covered ,
teiecommunications equipment or services beyond the certification provided upon accepting the loan or grant and those provided upon submitting payment
requests and financial reports. - "

(f) For additional information, see section 889 of Public Law 115-232 ar»d 200.471.
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS

■■'e Contractor agrees to comply with the following employee protective arrangements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b):
1 .U.S. DDL Certification. Under this Contract or any Amendments thereto Uiat involve public transportation opwrations thai are supported with federal
assistance, a certification issued by U.S. DOL is a condition of the Contract.

2.Special Warranty. When the Contract involves public transportation operations and is supported witti federal assistance appropriated or made available for
49 U.S.C. § 5311, U.S. DOL will provide a Special Warrarrty for its Award, including Its Award of federal assistance uixler the Tribal Transit Program. The -
U.S. DOL Spedai Warranty is a condition of the Contiact.
S.Special Arrangements. The conditions of 49 U.S;C. § 5333(b) do not apply to Contractors providing public transportation operations pursuant to 49 U.S.C.
§ 5310. FTA reserves the right to make case-by-case determinations of the applicability of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) for all transfers of funding authorized under
ti tle 23, United States Code (flex funds), and make other exceptions as it deems appropriate, and, In those instances, any special arrangements required by
FTA will be incorporated herein as required.

PROMPT PAYMENT

(Does not apply to projects fully hinded by the Tribal Transportation Program (TTPj.)

The contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work no later tfian 30 days
after the contractor's receipt of payment for that work. In addition, the contractor is required to return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within
30 days after the subcontractor's work related to this contract is satisfadoriiy completed.

The contractor must promptly notify the Agency, whenever a QBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its
work and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the sar7>e amount of work. The contractor may not
terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior wrttlen consent of the Agency.

SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES

Seat Belt Use
The Contractor Is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for Its employees and other personnemat operate
company-owned vehicles, company rented vehicles, or personally operated vehicles. The terms "company-owned* and "company-leased refer to vehkdes
owned or leased either by the Contiactor or Agency.

Distracted Driving . ^ • . u .
) Contractor agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text

^ssaging while using an electronic device supplied by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contactor owns, leases, or
rents, or a privately-owned vehicle when on official business in connection wito the work performed under this Contract.

SCHOOL BUS OPERATIONS



The contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(0. and 49 C.F.R. part 604. and not engage in school bus operations using federally funded equipment
or facilities In competltjon with private operators of school buses, except as permitted under

1. Federal transit laws, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5323(0;
2. FTA regulations, 'Sctwl Bus Operations," 49 C.F.R. part 605
3. Any other Federal School Bus regulations; or
4. Federal guidance, except as FTA determines otherwise In writing. )

If Contractor violates tNs SdvxH Bus Agreement, FTA may:
1. Bar the Contractor from receiving Federal assistance for public transportation; or
2. Require the contractor to taKe such remedial measures as FTA considers appropriate.

When operating exclusive school bus senrice under an allowabte exemption, the contractor may not use federally funded equipment, vehicles, or facilities.

The Contractor shoJd include the substance of this clause in each subcontract or purchase under this contract that may operate public transportation
services.

SOLID WASTES (RECOVERED tWIATERIALS)

(a) A Recipient or subrecipient that is a State agency or agency of a political subdivision of a State and its contractors must comply with section
6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act; as amerkJed by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 as amended, 42 U.S.C. 6962. The
requirements of Section 6002 Include fMOCUring only items designated In frie guidellr>es of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR-
Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfectory level of competition,
where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the prec^ng fiscal year exceeded $10,000;
procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and estabBshIng an affirmative
procurement program for procurement of recovered materials Identified in the guidelines.

(b) The recipient or subrecipient should, to the greatest extent practicable and consistent wtth law, purchase, acquire, or use products and services
that can be reused, refurbished, or recycled; contain recycled content, are blobased. or are energy and water efficient; and are sustainable. This
may include purchasing oompostable items and other products and services that reduce the use of single-use plastic products. See Executive
Oriler 14057. section 101, Policy.

SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES

Applies to States -

a. To the extent requirBd under federal law, the Slate, as the Recipient, agrees to provide the foUowing information about federal assistance awarded for its
State Program, Project or relatad activities:

(1) The Identification of FTA as the federal agency providing the federal assistance for a State Program or Project; )
(2) The Catalog of Federal Domestic Asslstaf>oe Number of the program fi'om which ttie federal assistance for a State Program or Project is
authorized; and

(3) The amount of federal assistance FTA has provided for a State Program or Project.

b. Documents - The State agrees to provide the Infontiation requlied under this provlsJon in the following documents:

(1) appBcations for federal a^tstance,
(2) requests for proposals or solicitations,
(3) forms,
(4) notifications,
(5) press releases,
(6) other pubDcations.

SUBSTANCE ABUSE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor agrees to establish and implement a drug and alcohol testing program that complies with 49 C.F.R. part 655, produce any documentation
necessary to establish Its compDance with part 655, and permit any authorized representative of the United States Department of Transportation or its
operating admlnistrBtlons, the State Oversight Agency, or Agency, to inspect the facirrties and records associated with the implementation of the drug and
alcohol testing program as required under 49 C.F.R. part 655 and review the testing process. The Contractor agrees further to certify annually Its
compliance with part 655 and to submit the Management Information System (MIS) reports to the Agency.

TERMINATION

Tftfrnlnfltton for Convenience fGeneral Proylsiom
The Agency may terminate this contract, in whole or In part at any time by written notice to the Contractor when It is In the Agency's best interest. The
Contractor shall t)e paid Its costs, including contract clo8e-(^ costs, and profit on wortc performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall
promptly submit its termination daim to Agency to be paid the Contractor. If the Contractor has any property in its possession belonging to Agency, the
Contractor wiD account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner Agertoy directs.

Termination for Default fBreach or Causel (General Provision) faii-
If the Contractor does not deliver supplies in accordar>ce with the contract deSvery schedule, or If the contract is for services, the Contractor falls to perform
h the manner caDad for in the contract, or if the Contractor falls to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the Agency may tenninate this contract
for default Termination shall be effected by serving a Notice of Termination on the Contractor setting forth the manner in which the Contractor is in default'
The Contractor will be paid only the contract price for supplies deivered and accepted, or services performed In accordance writh the manner of ^ J
perfbrmarKe set forth in the contract. If It is later determined by the Agency that the Contractor had an excusable reason for not performing, such as a strike,
fire, or flood, events which are rwt the fault of or are beyond the control of the Contractor, the Agency, after setting up a new delivery of performance
schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue v«xK or treat the termination as a Termination for Convenience.



Qoaortunilv to Cure ̂ General Provfeion^

The Agency, in Its scrfe discrelion may, In the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor [an appropriately short penod of tjmej in which
to cure the defect. In such case, the Notice of Termination will state the time period tn which cure Is permitted and ott>er appropriate conditions

If Contractor fails to remedy to Agency's satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract within (10 days] after
••^ceipt by Corttractor of wrffien notice from Agency setting forth the nature of said breach or (tefault, Agency shall have the right to terminate the contract

hout any further obligation to Contractor. Any such teimlnation for default shall not in any way operate to preclude Agency from also pursuing all available
.tsmedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

WflK/ftr of Remedies for anv Breach

In the event that Agency elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this contract, suc#i waiver by Agency
shall not limit Agency's remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other covenant, term, or condition of this contract

Termination for Convenience fProfessional or Transit Service Contracts!

The Agency, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in \whole of in part, when it is in the Agency's interest. If this contract Is terminated, the Agency
shall be fiable only for payment under the payment pro>risk)ns of this contract for services rendered l>^re the effective date of termination.

TermfoaHon for Default fSuDDlles and Serviced „ ̂ ^ .
If the Contractor fails to deliver supplies or to perform the services within the time specified In this contract or any extension, or rf the Contractor rails to
comply with any ottier provisions of this contract, the Agency may terminate this contract for default. The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the
Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. The Contractor wiP only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and
accepted, or iserwces performed in accordance with the manner or performance set forth in tfiis contract, if, after termination for failure lo fulfill contract
obligalions. ft is determined that the Contractor was not In default, the rights and obBgations of the parties shall be the same as if the tenninatlon had been
issued for the convenience of the Agency.

Termination for Default rTransPorifltion Services^

If the Contractor fails to pick up the commodities or to perform the services, including defivery services, within the time specified In this contract or any
extension, or if the Contractor faOs to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the Agency may terminate this contract for default. The Agency shall
terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination speci^ng the nature of defeult. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for
services performed In accordance with the manner of performance set forth in this contract.

ir this contract is terminated while the Contractor has possession of Agency goods, the Contractor shall, upon directlon of tfie Agency, protect and preserve
the goods until surrendered to the Agency or its agent. The Contractor and Agency shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of goods.
Failure to agree on an amount wi be resolved under the Dispute clause.

If, after termination for faijure to fulfill contract obligations, it Is detenmin^ that the Contractor.^s'not in default," the rights and obiigatioos of the parties shall
be the same as if the tennination had been issued fbr the convenience of the Agency.

Termination for Default fConstmction)

If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute tiie work or any separable part, with the diligence that will ensure Its completion within the time specified In this
ntract or any extension or fails to complete the work within this time, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provision of this contract, Agency
ay terminate this contract for defeult The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nafore of ttw defeult

In this event, the Agency may take over the vrork and compete it by contract or otherwise, arfo may take possession of and use any materials, appliances,
and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to the Agency resulting frorn the
Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work w'rthin specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This
llabllityjnc1udesanyincrealsedcostsincurredbytheAQerT<^foc6mpletingtltework. .

The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor shall the Contractor be charged with damages under this clause if: 1. The delay in completing
the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes Include; acts
of Godi acts of Agency, acts of another contractor In the performance of a contract with Agency, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight
erribargoes; and 2. The Contractor, within [10] days from the beginning of any delay, notifies Agency in writing of the causes of delay. If, in the judgment of
Agency, the delay Is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The judgment of Agency shall be final and conclusive for Ihe parties, but
subject to appeal urxJer the Disputes clause(s) of this contract. 3. If. after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor
was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties vrfll be the same as if the termination had been Issued for the
convenience of Agency.

Termination for Convenience or DefaultTArchitect and EnoineerinQl

The Agency rnay teimlnate this contract in whole or In part, for the Agency's convenience or because of the feilure of the Contractor to folfill the contract
obligations. The Agency shall terminate by deltvering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the
termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2)
deliver to foe Agency's Confracting Officer all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials
accumulated In performing this contract, vsfoether completed or in process. Agency has a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocsfote license to reproduce,
publish or otherwise use. sD such data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials.

If the termination is for foe convenience of foe Agency, the Agenc/s Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment In the contract price but shall
allow no anticipated profit on unperformed services.

If foe termination is fbr failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations, the Agency may complete foe work by contact or otherwise and the
Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost Incurred by the Agency.

If. after termination for failure to fulfili contract obligations. It is determined that the Contractor was not in defeult the rights and obligations of the parties shall
be foe same as if the termination had been Issued for foe convenience of Agency

Termination for Convenience or Default (Cost-Tvoe Contracts)

"Se Agency may terminate this contract, or any portion of it by serving a Notice of Termlnatton on Oie Contractor. The notice shaB state whether the
jmination is for convenience of Agency or for the default of foe Contractor. If the termination is for defeult, the notice shall state the manner In which the

Contractor has failed to perform the requirements of the contract. The Contractor shall account for any property In Its possession paid for from funds
received from foe Agency, or property supplied to foe Contractor by the Agency. If the termination Is for default, foe Agency may fix the fee, if the contract
provides for a fee, to be paid foe Contractor in proportion to the value. If any. of work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly
submit its termination claim to foe Agency and the parties shall negotiate the termination settlement to be paid the Contractor.



If the termination is for the convenience of Agency, the Contractor shall be paid Its contract dosen^ut costs, and a fee, if the contract provided for payment of
a fee, in proportion to the worlt performed up to the time of termination.

If after serving a Notice of Termination for Default, the Agency determines that the Contractor has an excusable reason for not performing, the Agency, after
setting up a new worft schedule, may aBow the ContrBctor to continue work, or treat the termination as a Termination for Convenience.

OTHER RECOMMENDED CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS ^

CONFORMANCE WITH ITS NATIONAL ARCHfTECTURE

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) projects shall conform to the National ITS Architecture and standards pursuant to 23 CFR § 940. Conformance with
the Natiorwl ITS Architecture is interpreted to mean the use of the National ITS Architecture to develop a regional ITS archtecture in support of integration
and the sutjsequent adherence of aD ITS projects to that regional ITS architecture. Development of the regtonal ITS architecture should be consistent wfth
the transportation planning process for Statewide and Metropolitan Transportation Planning (49 CFR Part 613 and 621).

FEDERAL TAX UABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTIONS

(1) The contractor certifies that it

(a) Does not have any unpaid Federal tax DabiBty that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administratiye reme^ have b^n exhausted or have
lapsed, er>d that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collectfog the tax liability: and

(b) Was not convicted of the febrv oiminal violation ur»der any Federal law within the preceding 24 months.

If the contractor cannot so certify, the Recipient wHI refer the matter to FTA and not enter into any Third Party Agreement with the Third Party Participant
without FTA's written approval.

(2) Row^Oown. The Recipient agrees to require the contractor to flow this requirement down to participants at all lower tiers, without regard to the value of
wy subagreement.

SEVERABILITY

The. Contractor agrcas that If-any provision of this agreement or sny anxsndment thereto Is determined to be involid, then the remaining provisions Lhereof
that conform to federal tews, regulations, requirements, and guidance will continue in effect.

TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS

The contractor agrees that 11 and its employees that participate In the Recipient's Award, may not;

(a) Engage In severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the Recipient's Award is in effect: '
(b) Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the Recipient's Award Is in effect; or

(c) Use forced labor,in the performance of the Redpierrt's Award of sub^reements thereunder.

.J



GOVERNMENT-WIDE OEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION
(NONPROCUREMENT)

Recipients, contractors, and subcontractors that enter into covered transactions are required to verify that the entity (as well as its principals ai^
affiBates) with which they propose to contract or subcontract Is r»t excluded or disquarified. This is done by: (a) checking the SAM exclusions; (b)
collecting a certification from that person (found below); or (c) adding a dause or condiUoo to the contract or subcontract.

tnstnjctlons for Certification: Signing below Indicates the prospective tower tier partidpant is providing the signed certification.

(1) ll will comply and facilitate compliaDce with U.S. DOT regulations. "Nonpnxiurcmcnl Suspension and Dcbaimcnt," 2 CFR part 1200. which adr^ts and
supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. 0MB) "Guidelines to Agencies on GoveraracQtwidc Debarracm and Suspension
(Nonprociircmcnt)," 2 CFR part 180,

(2) To ihe besi of its knowledge and belief, that its Principals and Subrecipients at the first tier

a. Arc eligible to participale in covered transactions of any Federal dcpatlment or agency and are rwi presently:

]. Debarred.

2. SajipeoJed,

3. Proposed for debannent,

4. Declared iixligible.

5. "Voluntarily excluded, or

6. Disqualified

b. Its management has not vsithin a ihree-ycar period preceding its latest application or proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against
any of thera for. .

I; Commission of fraud ore criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attcnqjting to obtain; oi pferforming apublic (Federal, State, or local)
transaction, orconir8ctimdr?".Hpublic.transoction,

2. Violation ofany Federal or Slate antitrust stanitc, or,
3. Commission of embezzlement, ibett, forgery, bribery, falsification or destniction ofrecords, making any false statement, or receiving stolen property,

c. it is not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govcminental entity (Federal, Stale, or local) widi commission of any of the
j  offenses listed in tbcprecedingsubscction 2.bof this CcrtificalJon,

d. U ha.s not had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) icmtinated for cause or defiiult within a three-year pcnod preceding this
Ceitificalion,

c. If, al a laiw lim^ it re^rvw any information that contradicts the statenumts of subsections 2.a - 2.d^above, It will jjroinpdy p^xride th.at informal to
FTA,

f. It will treat each lower tier contract or lower tier subcontract under its Project as a covered lower tier contrad for purposes of 2 CFR part 1200 and 2
CFR part 180 if it:

1. Equals or exceedsS25.0(y>,

2. Is for audit services, or.

3. Requires the conseni of a Feden>l official, and

g. ll will require that each covered lower tier contractor and subcontractor

1. Comply and fnciliiatc compliance with the Federal requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200, and
2. AsSJire that each lower tier participant in its Project is not presently declared by any Federal dcpartroent or agency to be:

a. Debarred (rom participation in iu federnlly funded Project,
b. Suspended from panicipaiion in its federally funded Project,
c. Proposed for debanneni from participation in its federally funded Project.
d. Declared ineligible to perricipate in its rederalty funded Project,
e. Voluntarily excluded from panicipation in its federally funded Project, or
f. Disqualified from partiripsiicm in iu federally funded Project, and

(3) It will pnividc a written explanation as indicatecl on a page attached in FTA's IVAMS platform or ihe Signature Page if it or any of its principals, including any
of its first tier Subrecipients or its Third-Party Participants at a lower tier, is unable to certify compliance with the preceding statements »n this Certification Grotfls.,

CcrttflcatlQn

jContractor Wi"
Signature nf Authorized Offidah ^—Dale—^
Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official: £
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 04/8/2025

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name ofSubrecipient Agency: Tri-Countv Community Action Prosram

Tri-Countv Community Action Prosram, shall comply with all applicable federal laws,
regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certificalions and Assurances. This award includes
information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows;

FTA award project description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $80,00U

Assistance Listing Number (ALK) (f/k/d CFDA): 20.526
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5339 BUS & BUS FACILITIES PROGRAM
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2024-009

Federal Award Date: 8/19/2024

Contact information for sub-awarding official:

Name: Fred Butler Tide: Public fransportation Administrator, Bureau of Rail and Transit
Email: Frederick.J.Butler@dot.nh,gov Phone: 603-271-2565
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:

Subrecipient Name: Tri-County Community Action Program
Subrecipient SAM.GOV Unique Entity ID (UET): F44JKSNJDJM6
Name of audiorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Robillard
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEO
Federal Clauses: Yes

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: 12%'
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or. ifno such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in 2 CFR 200.332{b)(4)(i)(A)(B) and
(a). httDs://www.ecfr.eov/ctarent/title-2/sublitle-A/chanter-ll/part-200
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 04/8/2025

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: 7/1/25 End Date; 6/30/29

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (agreement/amendment)'.

ForFFY: 2025 Section: 5339 Amount: $80,000

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecioient (oHsinat asreemetu & amendments):

ForFFY: 2025 Section: 5339 Amount: $292,500

Pass-through rcQUirements;

The Subrecipient, Tri-Countv Community Action Proeram agrees to meet all requirement
imposed by the pass-tifirou^ entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is
used in accordance with Federal statues, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal
award.

The Subrecipient, Tri-Countv Comnwnitv Action Proeram agrees to any additional
r^uirements that tiie pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the
paSs-through entity (NHDOT) in order for'the p^s-through entity (NHDOT) to meiet its oSvn
responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The Subrecipient, Tri-Countv Community Action Proeram agrees to permit the pass-through
entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements
as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and appropriate
terms and conditions conceraing cipseout of the subaward.

Date:

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Robillard

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEO

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official:



?.C. Hc.x SOiLl, J.r.:'..

August , 1973:Vi;:iC;E'.s

Corranunity Action in Coos,
Carroll and Grafccn Counties, In

69 Willard Street

Berlin. New Hair.pshlre C357C
.Attn: Fred Hill Jr. & Glenn R.

Ea£Ctr.an

Gentletien:

This is in rsplv to ycip recent letter, requesting a copy of er.
ec-;eitintiC-Ti lottsr ior tiio frincve organisation

Lue to o\ir records retenticn prograc, a copy of tb& ongrr^l
letter is not svailaoie.

However, records in this offics indicate that s deterninst5.on
letter wcs issued cn March, 1966 tc the above cr£ardcatlcn -
rulin- that tiiej vror-a eroDot from Federal inccr.a tsi: urier Secticr;
501(c)(3) of the Lnterncl Hevenue Code cf 1>'>^«

This ruiin- rftmcins in affect as long as there erg no changes in
their chcractor, -Wpcsft, cr method cf opera tier..

I trsst thot the for^gcing inf orc^aticn'v-i.'!! ' ser''e yc-ur purp-coi..

/

vmJUIAl': £.

Etstrict rtrgccor

Tour etnulovsr idencificaCion number is 02026740^



Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury

District

Director

Tri-Counxy Community Action
Program. Incorporated

30 change Street,
Ber-lin, MH 03570

10 MetroTech Ceriter

625 Fulton Street
Brooklyn. hfY 11201

Date: M 3 0 159]

Person to Contact:

Patricia Holub

Contact Telephone N'umbe:
(718) 488-2333
EIN: 02-0287404

Dear Sir or Madam:

Reference is made to your recjuest for verification of the
tax exempt status of Tf i-Couhty' CbmmuhityyActioh''Prp'gram ,
Incorporated.

A determination or ruling letter issued to an organization
granting exemption under the Internal Revenue Code remains in
effect until the tax exempt status has been terminated, revoked
or modified. .

Our records indicate that exemption was;.granted, as' shown below.

Sincerely yours

Patricia Holub

Manager, Customer
Service Unit

Name of Organisation: Tri-County Community Action
Prog ran:, Iricoi^porated

Date of Exemption Letter: March 1966

Exemption gi'^anted pursuant to section 5&i(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Foundation Classification (if applicable): Mot a private
foundation as you are an organisation described in sections
50S(a)(l) and 170(b)(1)(A)Cvi) of the Internal Revenue Code.
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& Roberts

PROFH2S)ONAL ASSOCIATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT r.si?nFiKnPin'Xic ACCOUNTANTS

D0\1:R*
NORTH C0N^S'^y

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiiiate

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which compnse the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, the
related statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial st^ements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of TrI-County Community Action Program, Inc. arid Affiliate as of June 30,
2023, and the changes In Its net assets and its cash fiovrs for the year then ended In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsitxlities
under those standards are further described In the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Trt^ounty
Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, Implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management Is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered In the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be
issued.



Auditors' Rosponsibittties for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but Is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether, due to fraud or error, and design arid perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disdosures in.the consolidated firiahcial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accountirig policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in cur judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise sub^ntlal doubt about Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for tfie purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated fii^ndal
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal award^ as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
ReauiiBments. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Is pre^nted for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial st^^ente.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relies directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial st^emente.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including co^anng and
reconciling such Information directly to the underlying accounting and ottier records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures In accordance with auditing staridards generally
accepted in the Unrted States cff America. In our opinion, the schedule of exj^ndrtures ̂  federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance, with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 13 2023 on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. s^emai
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain proviaons of lavi®,
regulations, contracts, and grant'agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the eff^v^ss of Tn-
County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audrt performed in accordance with
Auditing Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Summarfeed Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and. AffHates' 2022
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audrted finanaai
statements in our report dated November 15. 2022. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, is consistent, in all
material respects, vrith the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13,2023



TR1.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC, ANP AFFtLIATS

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30.2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program
Accounts receivable
Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY
Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Right of use asset, operating
Restricted cash

T^lnoncu'rrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABIUTIES

Current portion of long term debt
Current-portion of-tighl of use liability, operating
Accounts payable ^
AccrMd compensated absences
Accrued salaries
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT UABIUTIES
Right of use liability, operating, less current portion
Long term debt, net of currenl portion

Total nabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2023

$ 4.400.730 $ 3.827,664

1.313,655 977,227

2.024.646 1,807,274

192.212 169,196

123,409 59.759

138.888 138.811

8.193,440 6.979.931

12,858.931 12.794.151

(6.522.499) (6.088.609)

6.336.432 6,705.542

208,857

413,721 410,431

-.622.578 410.431

$15,152,450 $14,095,904

$  139,961 $  134,452

86.219 -

■4^,444'. ,26.2.473
249.777 228,342

90,948 81,707
95,772 117.415

403.239 446.208
1.342,462 1.085.406

2.864.822 2,356,003

122,638 .

.4.296.550 4.442.866

7.284.010 6.798.869

7.577,645 7.037.337
290,795 259,698

7.868.440 7.297.035

$15,152,450 $ 14.096.904

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRi-cnuNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grants and contracts
Program funding
Utility programs
tn-kind contributions
Contributions

FurKJ raising
Rental Income

Interest Inconrm

Gain on disposal of property

Other revenue

Without Donor

Restrictions

$ 39.636,536
1.131.923
1,458.146
479.251
262,119
23,626

887.061
26.196
6,817
2.735

Total revenues and other support 43,884,409

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 137,290

Total revenues, other support, arxl
net assets released from restrictions

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Program Services;

Agency Fund
Head Start
Guardianship
Transportation
Volunteer

Carroll County Dental
Homeless

Energy and Community Development
Elder

Hou^ng Services

Total program services

Supporting Activities;
General and administrative

Fundralsing

Total supporting acth/ittes

Total functional expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

MET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

MET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

44.021,699

1.314.337
3,107,886
651,255

1.404.213
72,150

679,379
20,422,871
■V3.099.599

1,276,827
212.979

42,241.496

1,236,580
3,315

1.239,695

43,481.391

540,308

.7,037,337

Vlflth Donor
Restrictions

$  168,387

168,387

(137,290)

31,097

31,097

259,698

2023
Total

$ 39,804,923
1,131,923
1,458,145

479,251
252,119

23,626
867.061

26,196
6,817
2735

44,052796

1.314,337
3,107,888

651,255
1,404,213

72,150
679,379

20,422.871
13,099.599

1.276.827
212.979

42,241,496

1.236,580
3,315

1,239.895

43.481.391

571,405

2022
Total

$33,019,028
1,178,528
1,862,325

228.341
140,578

8,616
797.436

484
6,874
4789

37.248.999

44.052.796 37,248.999

7,297,035

1,453.842
2,792,837

658,956
892,112
62,053

673,708
17.630,850
9.978,945
1,095,578
. 248,736

35.467,617

1,146,090
1,266

1.147.356

36.634.973

614,026

6.683.009

$ 7,577.645 $ 290,795 $ 7.868,440 $ 7,297,035

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI.COUNTY CniUIMllNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFIUATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Gain on disposal of property

Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts recetvabie
Pledges receivable
Irivehtories
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued Claries
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

. Other liabilihes

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment on long-term debt.

- Repayment cn capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest

2023 2022

S  571.405 $  614,026

528.849 520.221

(6,817) (8,674)

(217.272) (190,025)
(23,016) 47,227

(63,650) (6.774)

(77) (85.217)

193,971 268,170
21,435 (5.565)
9,241 (301.728)

(21,643) (149,180)
(42,969) 122,068

. 257,056 (315.239)

1.206.513 499,110

8,091 8,874

(161.013) (158.013)

(152,922) (149.139)

(140.807) (129,342)

(W.807) (129,342)

912.784

5.216.322

220.629

4.994.693

$  6.128.106 6 5,215.322

68,645 95.695

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Trl-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate. Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primariiy through grants or
contracts from various federai, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction, and operation- of community-based housing for the elderly.

,  Nature of activities .
The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy developmentv

Tri-County CAP Administration is the iiaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities Include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.

j



TRI-CQUhiTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri-County Community Action Head Start funded enrollment is 217, but
over the course of the program year serves approximately 250 children in
Carfoli, Coos & Graflon counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based
classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill. traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who. need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
vyilling, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 , indftfiduals. Additional sen/ices include, conservatorship,
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel'tom^edical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 14
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 208 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 50
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 15,000 hours yearly.

10



TRI-CQUNTY CQMWIUMITY action PROGRAM- INC. AND If-fAfE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

CarrotI County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventatlve, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach
Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide infoimatlcn to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Lowrlncome Weatherization

The" NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 4 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling.
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.
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TRI-nnilNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hartipshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program.. A separate. ..audit is .perfonmed as it
relates to Cornerstone's compliance v^ilh its major federal program in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America: the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
An unmodified opinion was issued. .

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program.
Inc. and affiliate have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than
contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date
of receipt or payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding Its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:
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TRI-COUNTY nOMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not
subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for
any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization.
These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization s
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
Stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions
are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be
maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $290,795 and $259,698
at June 30. 202-3 and-2022, respectively. See Note 13.

Con^U^^eceived-are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction

-"ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restncticns are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collet from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due fr^
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. Past due receivables are
written off at management's discretion using the direct write off method; this is not
considered a departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the United
State because the effects of the direct write off method approximate those of the
allowance method. Management selects accounts to be written off after analyzing
past payment history, the age of the accounts receivable, and collection rates for
receivables with similar characteristics, such as length of time oi^tanding. The
Organization does not charge interest on outstanding accounts receivable.
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TRUCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PRQGpAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and Improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an Individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.

■ Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful-lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Fumiture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on ,an annual basis by-the-
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
Without Such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their Income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $403,239 and $446,208 as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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TRI-COUNTV community action program. ^MD AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit. Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors. The Organization files information returns in the
United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), Is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after it is filed.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
Management does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain, tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. is exempt from Income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. Al! employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013. employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30. 2023 and 2022, there were no discretional^
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the Organization's
403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must'be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one .year are. recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional prornises to give that am expected to be collected In more than prie
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included In contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. ■ When a-restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no
unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2023 and 2022.

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $192,212 and $169,196,
respectively. This amount Is included in contributions in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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TRUCQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose feir values of its
financial instruments. ITie carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments \which consists of cash, accounts receivabie, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functionai allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functionai basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the
various programs and supporting services based. on actual or
estimated time employees spend on each function as. reported on a
timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program
based upon the classification of each employee and allocated to the
various program based upon the time employees spend on each
function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and-is allocated to each
program as a percentage of total salaries'.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These
expenses include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health
and dental insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is
allocated to each program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon
specific assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation
expense on the statements of functional expenses.

Qtfier occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are
used' by multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the
benefiting program based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs
related to a building include depreciation, insurance, utilities, building
maintenance, etc. These costs are reported as space costs on the
statements of functionai expenses.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on
vehicle usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs
based on square footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture
and equipment is allocated to programs using the book basis of the
insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost
^  Pool and are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of

program expenses. The expenses include items such as
administrative salaries, general liability insurance, administrative
travel, professional fees, and other expenses which cannot be
specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
-benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
-Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022, received
provisional-approval and is effective, until amended, at a. rate. pf.12%.. The actual
rates for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were approximotety 11.26% and
10.95%, respectively, which is allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertisinqpolicv

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs It
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $20,143 and
•$6,696,^respectivety. . -w-

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019. the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." The ASU Is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been Included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2023 and 2022.

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Organization denves revenue primarily from grants, contracts, and
contributions. Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Cornerstone derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
recognized as income, monthiy, when rents become due and control of the apartment
unit is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a term of one year and
are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred to the lessee
in an amount that reflects the consideration Comerstone expects to be entitled to in
exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed
as incurred.

Newr AccountinQ Pronouncement

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases {Topic 842), to increase
transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets
and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position and disclosing key
information about leasing arrangements for lessees and lessors. The standard
applies a right of use model that requires, all leases with a lease term of more than
12 months, to recognize, an.asset representing Its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term and liability to make lease payments to be recorded. The
Organization elected not to restate the comparative period. The Organization also
elected not to reassess at adoption (i) expired or existing contracts to determine
whether they are or contain a lease, (ii) the lease classification of any existing
leases, (iii) initial direct costs for existing teases. The adoption of ASU 2016-02
resulted In the recognition of an operating right of use assets of $208,857 and
operating lease liabilities of $208,857 as of June 30. 2023. Results for periods
beginning prior to July 1. 2022 continue to be reported in accordance with the
Organization's historical accounting treatment. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 did
not have a material Impact on the Organization's results of operations and cash
flows.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2023

and 2022:

2023 2022

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 4,400,730 $  3,827.664

Restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program 1,313,655 977.227

Accounts receivable 2.024,546 1,807,274

Pledges receivable 192,212 169,196

Restricted cash 413.721 410.431

Total financial assets 8.344.864 7.191.792

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 290,795 259,698
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TRI^^QUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAfif|, AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program 1,313,655 977,227
Restricted cash 413,721 410,431
Less net assets vrith time restrictions to be

met In less than a year (254,537) (207,879)

Amounts not available within one year 1.763.634 1,439,477

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 6.581.230 £ ^.752.315

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $6,982,000 and $5,899,000 at June 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ^
Cash end .casfi .equivalents, consist of cash, on hand, funds on deposit with finapcial
institutions,-and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported,
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total In the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

2023 2022

Cash, operations $ 4.400,730 $ 3,827,664
Restricted cash, current 1,313,655 977,227
Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash $ ^■12^.106 $ 5.^1

Cash Restrictions
The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.
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TRI^QUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $20,079 and $20,069, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022. These arnounts are included in restricted cash in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond Issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30. 2023 and 2022 was $174,841 and $174,807, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the. account Js restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30. 2023 and 2022 was $1,313,655 and $977,227. respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2023 and 2022
was $1,313,655 and $977,227, respectively, and is included In the restricted cash,
Guardianship Services Program balance on the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30. 2023 and 2022 was $218,801 and $215,555. respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY
In 2023 and 2022. inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2023 and 2022 consists of weatherization materials,
totaling $123,409 and $59,759. respectively.
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TRI-CQUNTY mwiMUNITY AHTinN PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

notes. PROPERTY
Property consists of the following at June 30, 2023:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost DeDreclation Book Value

Building
Equipment
Construction in progress
Land

$ 10,119,418
2.278,559

42,114
418.840

£ 12.858.931

$ 4,630.469
1.892,030

$ 5,488,949
386,529
42,114
418.840

Property consists of the following at June 30,2022:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building
Equipment
Construction in progress
Land

$ 10,039,601
2,329,022

6,688

418.840

£ 12,794.151

$ 4,426,613
1,661,996

$ 5,612,988
667,026

6,688
418.840

£ 6.705.542

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not Included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 totaled
$527,962 and $519,334, respectively.

note 6. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES
For the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022, employees of the Organization were
eiigible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2023 and
2022, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $249,777 and $228,342,
respectively.
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NOTE 7.

TRI.CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PPpGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 consisted of
the following:

20222023

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360
monthly installments of $1,664, including interest
at 5% per annum. Secured by general business
assets. Final installment due January 2027. $  64,236 $  80,546

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
Installments of $2,936, including interest at 4%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2031. 236,057 261,160

Bond- payable-with ' a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, Including interest of
2.75% plus the bank's Internal cost of funds
multiplied by 67% with an indicative rate of
3.28%. Secured by first commercial real estate
mortgage on various properties and assignments
of rents at various properties. Final installment
due August 2040. 2,276,888 2.377,169

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. This capital advance is not
subject to interest or principal amortization and
will be forgiven after 40 years, or in August 2047. 1,617,600 1,617,600

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage
payable due to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority. The mortgage is not subject to interest
or principal amortization. Payments are deferred
for 40 years; final payment due in August 2047. 250.000 250.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized debt issuance costs

4,444,781
(8.2701

4,586,475
(9.1571

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

4,436,511
(139.961)

4.577,318
(134.4521

S 4.296.550 S 4 442.866
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2023 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2024 $ 139,961
2025 145.697
2026 151.677
2027 148.113
2028 143.453

Thereafter 3.715.880

S 4.444.781

As described at Note'3. the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
v/ith a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTES. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE
The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest for the years ended June 30, 2023 and
2022 at 9.25% and 5.75% per annum, respectively. There was no balarice
outstanding at June 30;-2023 and 2022. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10, OPERATING LEASES
On July 1. 2022, the Organization was required to adopt ASU 2016-02, Leases
CTopic 842). As part of implementing ASU 2016-02, the Organization evaluated
current contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease. The right of use
(ROU) asset represents the Organization's right to use underlying assets for the
lease term, and the lease liabilities represent the Organization's obligation to make
lease payments arising from these leases. The ROU assets and lease liabilities, all
of which arise from operating leases, were calculated based on the present value of
future lease payments over the lease terms. The Organization has elected to
discount future cash flows at the risk-free borrowing rates commensurate with the
lease terms, which was 3.01% at June 30, 2023. Common expenses, classified as
space costs in the accompanying financial statements, are considered a non-lease
component under FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs are Incurred. The
Organization's operating leases are described below.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUhllTY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AMD AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelab!e lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities which are leased on a month-to-month basis.
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $147,801 and $141,820, respectively.

Lease liability maturities as of June 30. 2023 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30:

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

Total undlscounted lease liability
Less imputed interest

Total lease liability

Amount

91,317
59.685
52,460
11,372
3.543

218.377
i9.520)

$  208.857

tdDTFU. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS x .u
The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder
programs rely heavily on volunteere who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follov^^:

S

Professional services and
services for disabled

Packing, setup and delivery of
congregate and home
delivered meals

Head Start

$  76,770 $

enior

Meals

102.077

Total

$  76,770

102.077
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TRi-rnnNTY community action program inc. and AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30 2023 AND 2022

The fair value of donated services Included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total.
Professional services and ® o avq

services for disabled $ 2,479 $ ■ 5 z.Afy
Packing, setup and delivery of

congregate and home
delivered meals : 55,359

$  2.479 £ 55.359 | 5LiB2S

Numerous volunteers have donated significant amounts of time to the
Organization's program services; Although no amounts have been reflected m the
consolidated financial statements, management estimates the fair value of thpse
services to be approximately $367,930..,and .$277,300 .for the years ended June 30.
2023 and 2022. respectively. ■

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder programs
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions In the consolidated
financtai statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30. 2023 are as follows;

Senior

Head Start Meals Total
Difference between rent paid ^^-7

and market rate $ 69.097 S 4,100 % 73,'QZ

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30. 2022 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total

Difference between rent paid . ^
and market rate £ 58.230 $ $ 60,030
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30.2023 are as follows;

Head Start Homeless Transportation Total
Employee use of
home $ 73,495 $ - $ - $ 73,495

Donated goods - - 24,948 24,948
Hotel rooms for

homeless clients : 128.764 128,764

Total S 73.495 £ 128.764 £ 24.948 £ 227.207

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30. 2022 are as follows:

Head Start Homeless . Total

Employee use of home $ 56,789 $ - $ 56,789
Donated goods - 1,400 1,400
Hotel rooms for homeless clients = 52.284 52,284

Total S 56.789 £ 53.684 £ 110.473

note 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
The Organization receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, approximately
$39,361,299 (89%) and $32,598,596 (88%), respectively, of the Organization's total
revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a significant
reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant impact on
the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone receives a large majority of its support from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.
approximately 61% and 64%, respectively, of Cornerstone's total revenue was
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Cornerstone
Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The majority of Cornerstone's assets are apartment projects, for which operations
are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In addition,
Cornerstone operates in a regulated environment. The operation of Cornerstone is
subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local
regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD. Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or an
administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes may occur with little
notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the administrative
burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 . 2022

jernpprary municipal funding I .
Restricted buildings 38,084
Loans-HSdP' 23.484 ..24,234
RSVP program funds 15,708 6,255
FAP/EAP 14,092 12,079
CCCoos 5.099 ®'''32
Head Start 3.577 2,370
CC Carroll 427
CCGrafton 180 421
LIWAP Program ., 6
RSVP - Matter to Balance ^—r 500

Total net assets with donor restrictions S 290.795 S 259.698

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant CotnoUance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
Including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
nonccmpliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

EnvSronmehtat ContinGencfes

On March 30, 2009. the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.
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TRI-CQUNTY CQMMUMITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils arid parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released Into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30. 2023 and subsequently, legal actions were brought
against the Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as
of June 30. 2023, as wejl as the uncertain^ of the Organization's potential liability,
no amount has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

note 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Corneiatone's regulatory agreement with HUD, the Organization is required
to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the replacement of property
and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-restricted deposits of
$207,956 and $208,162 were held in a segregated account at June 30, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, HUD approved a loan from the replacement
reserve account to the operating account to cover operating expenses due to the
delay in HAP vouchers being processed by HUD. Once alt HAP vouchers are
processed and paid. Cornerstone will pay bad< the replacement reserve account the
loan balance of $26,649. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not available for
operating purposes.

Cornerstone's use of the residual receipts account is contingent upon HUD's prior
written approval. Residual receipts of $6,454 and $3,003 were held in a segregated
account for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Under the regulatory agreement. Cornerstone is required to set aside amounts for the
return of resident paid deposits. At June 30, 2023 and 2022 $4,391 and $4,390,
respectively, were held in a segregated account and generally are not available for
operating purposes.
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TRI^OUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM IMn AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of Cornerstone's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above. Cornerstone was required to remit funds
to HUD totaling $71,396 during the year ended June 30. 2022.

NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Organization has evaluated events through November 13, 2023, which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmenf
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States , the financi^
statements of Tri-Couhty Community Action Program, Inc. (a New Hampshire honprotn
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and
2022, and the related statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, the related statement of activities for the year ended June 30. 2023, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 13.
2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency In internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A materlat weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that Is less severe than a material weakness, yet
Important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose descnbed in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no Ir^stances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an int^rai part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considenng the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable
for any other purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2023

J
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

RFQtllRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program. lnc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements Identified as subject to audit In the 0MB
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Tri-County Community Action
lnc.'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. Tn-County Commui^ ̂lon
Program, lnc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. compiled. In all matenal respects
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that rould have a direct and
material effect on each of Its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with auditing standards 9®nerally
accepted In the United States of America; the standards appliitable to
contained In Government Auditing Standards. Issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States- and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federai R^ulations Pa^OO,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles.
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those
Guidance are further described In the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report
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We are required to be independent of TrI-County Communrty Action Program, Inc. and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relabng to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal progrann. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibittties of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compli^ce with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Comptlance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompiiance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or eiror, and
express an opinion on Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance based on our
audit Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but ts not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing starid^ixls. Government Auditing Standards: and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompiiance when it exists. The risk of not detec^g material noncomplian(^
resulting from fraud Is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovemde of internal contreL
Noncompiiance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered matenal rf
there is a substantial likelihood that. Individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

.  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompiiance. whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
Include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Tri-County Commun^ Action
Program, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

. Obtain an understanding of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the puirt)ose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program.
Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

)
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any signiftcant deficiencies and
material weaknesses In internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that matenal
noncompliance vflth a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over complianoe with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In
the Auditors' Respbfisibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all de'ficiencies In internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies In inlernal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was r^t designed fpr the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion Is expressed.

The purpose of this report on Internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2023
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Tpi^niiNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

1  The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial staternents are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Intemai Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in intemai control over major federal award programs during
the audit are reported in the independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-Courity
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs Included;

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Emergency Solutions
Grant Program-ALN 14.231

U.S. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program - ALN
21.023

U.S. Department of the Treasury. Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds-ALN 21.027

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $1,125,160.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk audltee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

Board Resolution 5FY24: Resolution of the Corporation

RESOLUTION APPROVING REVISIONS

TO THE TITLE VI PLAN FORTRI- COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC

The Board of Directors of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the "Corporation")
takes the following action:

Resolved, Tri - County Community Action Program, Inc. does not discriminate on the basis
of race, color, and national origin, in admission or access to, or treatment or employment in,
its services, programs, and activities. Furthermore, as a recipient of federal and state funds,
Tri - County Community Action Program, Inc., DBA Tri - County Transit, is required to
adopt a Title VI Plan and Title VI Nondiscriminatlon Agreement and provide the required
assurances and certifications required by the New Hampshire Department of
Transportation and Federal Transit Administration.

The Tri-County Community Action Program Board of Directors acknowledges that updates
to the plan are needed every three years in order to be compliant vrith current state and
federal guidelines and regulations and hereby approves and adopts the Title VI Plan for
Tri-County Community Action Program, DBA Tri-County Transit, and authorizes the Board
Chair to execute the U.S. DOT Assurances associated with Title VI during the effective plan
period.

Attest, the resolution adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on
September 26, 2023.

By:

•DoeuSloMd

■KOATSiPIBWMp

Name: Sandy Alonzo
Title: Board Chair

DoeuSlgiMd by;

By
Name: George Sykes
Title: Treasurer



jmcdonald

Objectives:
I am looking for a job that will allow me to utilize the skills I've honed over my years of work in
various facilities to their fullest potential.

Education

White Mountain Comniunity College
66 credits towards Bachelor's Degree / Working on business degree

Experience
Tri County CAP - Transit 1 31 Pleasant St, Berlin, NH
Dirertor of Transportation October 6, 2021- Present

❖ fo]llow,pepartinentofjrar\sportation (DOT) policies and procedures
❖ Oversee, write and manage grants and financial resources to support Division Programs.
❖ Develop and implement strategies for improving program
❖ Ensure that program meet or exceed their strategic goals
❖ Provide regular supervision to program managers
❖ Responsible for general oversight of program
❖ Certified Passenger assistance trainer
❖. Certi fied' Defensive Driver trainer

Tri County CAP - Transit I 31 Pleasant St, Berlin, NH
Operations Manager July 1, 2017 - October 6, 2021

❖ Follow Department of Transportation (DOT) policies and procedures
❖ Lead, direct and manage fleet drivers and dispatch staff.
❖ Hiring, training, evaluating performance from staff
❖ Participate in the development and plan of aimual budgets

Ensure operations are compliant with DOT standards for safety and insurance purposes.

Tri County CAP - Transit I 31 Pleasant St, Berlin, NH
Dispatcher Apnf 2075-June30, 2017

Assign drivers routes, destinations, and timelines.
Keep in close contact vrilh drivers who are on the road.
Proficient at using dispatch software, and Medicaid Portal and software.
Responsible for keeping, verifying, and monitoring driver daily logs.
Attend quarterly staff meetings and take minutes for those meetings.
Effectively work with co-workers
Provided outstanding customer service



jmcdonald

Wildcat Mountain Ski Area I Gorham, NH

Asst. Guest Services Manager November 2014 - April 2015

❖ Cross-trained and backed up other customer service managers.
❖ Hired seasonal staff.

❖ Made out weekly schedules.
❖ Oversees all guest services operations, including front desk, reservations, and ticket sales.
❖ Ensure quality and guest satisfaction.
❖ Good thorough knowledge of scheduling software.
❖ Daily Deposits for aU departments

Toys R Us I Settlers Green, North Conway, NH
Asst. Manager April 2012 - January 2014

❖ Organized private mailbox system using mailbox manager software.
❖ Reported to the district manager regarding all store and staff issues.
❖ Managed staff of 4 sales associates, 2 team leaders.
❖ Hiring staff and making work schedules.
❖ Daily Deposits

Northern Human ̂rvices I iBerlin, NH
Housing Coordinator March 1999 - September 2011

❖ Planned and coordinated logistics and materials for board meetings, committee meetings
and staff events.

❖ Screened applicant resumes and coordinated both phone and in-person interviews.
❖ Drafted biweekly time sheets for Twelve (12) employees.
❖ Ofgahizkl d\\ new hire, security and temporary paperwork.
❖ Had to adhere to state rules and regulations.

❖ Follow state procedures on running a state funded facility.
❖ Follow a tight budget, to keep in state guidelines.
❖ Worked closely with other while keeping an open line of communication.
❖ Responsible for working closely with the case management and intake

staff.

❖ Develop, implement and/or supervise programs and services in support
of assigned housing program

❖ Complied with state and Federal regulations for eligibility determination
and record-keeping.

❖ Prepared for state and Federal audits and provided regular reports to
superiors and the Board of Directors.

❖ Perform case coordination, clinician collaboration, crisis prevention, crisis interventions to at

least 15 consumers living with a severe mental illness.

❖ Demonstrates a working knowledge of public social service programs and policies



jmcdonald

Skills:
Highly Motivated

Flexible

Accurate & Detail Oriented

Excellent Planner & Coordinator

Works well under pressure
Pleasant & Professional Demeanor

Team Building
Multi - Line Phone proficiency
Critical Thinker

❖ Project Planning
❖ HIPAA Compliance
❖ Basic knowledge of grant writing
❖ Dependable
❖ New Hampshire Notary

References available upon request



tVeanjne L* Itobillard

COHE STKEIVGTHS

Program development, management and administration ♦ Community coUabotatioDS
Development of polic)', protocol, and service delivery to meet funder standards

Grant writing and management ♦ Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative solutions & problem solving ♦ Capacity building

Professional presentations ♦ Public speaking
Dedication ♦ Imagination ♦ Determination ♦ Fortitude

TPBqjFESSBOIVAB. EXPERtlEWCE

Tri-Conntj Commnnilj Aetioii Programs* Inc.
Clucfi ExcicatiTC Officer

Berlin, NH 20I6 - enrretU FT ewttpiayitteni

Tri-Connty Commmuly Action Programs, Inc.
Chief Operating Officer
Berlin, IVH 2016 - 2018

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services aaoss three counties of Nofthem.New'Hampshirc. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget pcrfonnance; tactical ovorsight af programs.to mcct or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategics to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiadves. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri-Connty Commonity AeAion Programs, Inc.
Division Director: TCCAP Prevcnfibii Services
Berlin, MB 2015-2016

Responsible for four agency programs under.the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for fundcrs
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service delivery;
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri-Coimty Commnnity Aciion Programa, inc.
Pr<»gram/Divisioit Director: Sappori Center at Bnrcb Bouse
Littleton, Mew Hampshire 2007- 301S
Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for funders and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and marketing strategies; participate in state and local collaborations to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and federal victim service initiatives, including presentation of
legislative testimony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.



JL Robillard ♦ 2

Bookkeeper: Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network (WREN)
Bethlekem, NH current PT emploTment

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekly pa}'rolJ
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Tri'Countj Communitj Action Pmgrams. Enc.
EKrcct Slerricca/Volnnteer Coordinator: Support Center at Rurdh House
Littleton. New Hampshire 1997 to 3007
Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present communitj' outreach presentations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: HaverhiH Area Juvenile Diversioii Pr<^ram

Woodsville. New Hampshire 1999>3001

Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Counselor/Title H Teo^en Northern Family Institute-Jefferson Shelter
Jefferson. New Hampshire 1990-1999
Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Edocation

BS in Human Services, Springfield College School of Human Services. Boston. MA
Criminal Justice Concentration, Graduated with 4.0 GPA

AS in Drag and Alcohol Hehabilitation Counseling (DAHC Program)
Southern Connecticut Community College. New Haven, CT

Additiownl Stkillw. Praffesgional JLeadei^iiip and Civic AffifSatiowa

♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elcacd 2006-2010
♦ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northcm New Hampshire 2000-200\ Treasurer 1996-1998
♦ Chairman, Haverhill Area Family Anolcncc Council 1998-2003
♦ Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
♦ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; IndividualMers/her 2008-2017
♦ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010-2015
♦ Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current

♦ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011
♦ Bethlehem Qtizcn's Advisory Committee on Recycling 2007-2010

♦ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Busincss Owner : Aurora Energies 2015- current
♦ Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997- current
♦ Meniber, United States Figure Skating Association/fntemarional Skating Institute current since 1993



Scott Boisvert
Highly effective Operations Manager with 15 years of experience.

EXPERIENCE

Tri-County Community Action Program, Berlin, NH
Economic Supports Department Head

202/4-pRESENT

Ensure ihc clTcciive and elTicieni opcraiion ol ihe Economic Supporis programs al

TC'C'.AP. Pcrfomi and inoniuir functions Involving the department, including

nianagcmeni and supervision of those programs, and employees. Aica.s include

Operations, compliance, supervision, disciplitic, evaluation, inten-iewing and

reeominendaiion of hiring and promotions in order to cany out the mi.ssion ofTCCAP.

SKILLS

New Business Development

Conflict Resolution

Budgeting

Leadership

Efficiencies

Safety Management

AWARDS

Tri-County Community Action Program, Berlin, NTT
Mobility Maitager Region 2

2022 - 2024

Work towards expanding transportation options and developing new
sustainable transportation options to serve the communities within the
region.

DiSilva Heating, North Conway, NH
Service Apprentice

2021 • 2022

HVAC installations and service.

Rynies Propane & Oil, Ossipee, NH
Division Manager

2017-2021

Manage retail operations, sales, marketing, customer service and an
employee team of 12 as well as DOT regulations and safety compliance.

Amerigas, Phoenix, AZ
Western Reg/on Manager

2014-2017

Managed operating expenses, cost effective quality product &
marketing programs throughout the Western Region. Managed and
ensured compliance with safety codes & policies as well as staffing &
development including employee Customer Service skills &
management.

2009 - Western Region; Region
of the Year

2010 - Western Region;
Packaging Cost vs. Budget

2011 - Northeast Region;
Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year,
EBITA, Region of the Year, Eagle
Award for Packaging Cost vs.
Prior Year, Patriotic Employee
Recognition

2012 - Northeast Region;
Packaging Cost vs. Budget,
Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year,
Outstanding Productivity,
Region of the Year, Eagle Award
for Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year

2014 - Western Region;
Outstanding Safety
Performance, Outstanding
Productivity Results



Amerigas, Northfield, NH & Gardena, CA
Operations Manager
2009-2014

Managed operations at production facilities. Managed large teams of
employees at each facility including training in safety and compliance.

Amerigas, Northfield/Laconia, NH & Lewiston, ME
Operations Supervisor
2006-2009

Supervisor in ACE wash/fill facilities. Managed district and area
deliveries as well as a team of employees which includes training in
various tasks and safety protocols.

EDUCATION

Andover Community College, Business Management

2001-2002

NH Technical Institute, Business Management

2003


